








February 26, 2019 Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 3

CITY OF ELKO
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
3:00 P.M., P.S.T., TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2019

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order by Reece Keener, Chairman of the City of Elko Redevelopment
Agency (RDA).

ROLL CALL

Present: Councilman Bill Hance
Councilman Chip Stone
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Mayor Reece Keener

Excused: Councilwoman Mandy Simons.

City Staff: Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
Shelby Archuleta, Planning Technician

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

November 13, 2018 – Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The minutes were approved by general consent.

I. PRESENTATIONS

A. Presentation by Cathy Laughlin, City Planner on the Redevelopment Activities from
2008 to Present. INFORMATION ONLY – NON ACTION ITEM

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner gave a power point presentation on the Redevelopment Activities
from 2008 to Present.

Mayor Keener asked how many members the Redevelopment Association of Nevada has.



February 26, 2019 Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 3

Ms. Laughlin said there were a little bit more than a dozen. It is all of the Redevelopment
Agencies within the State, as well as a few members from the private sector. A couple of
consultants that are also members, who consult municipalities into Redevelopment. One of them
used to be a Redevelopment Manager in Henderson.

Mayor Keener asked if there was a full time staff.

Ms. Laughlin explained that they just have meetings. They have bylaws and membership dues.
They meet more on legislature years, like this year they will meet more often because they
address the bill drafts that are out that have to do with redevelopment. They mostly have monthly
meetings to talk about anything that is going on with redevelopment. It is a great avenue for us to
participate with, because they have already participated with their redevelopment areas for so
much longer than Elko has that they are teaching us the pros and cons of different things. Ms.
Laughlin said that she relies on them. She sends out emails all the time, and gets them as well.

Ms. Laughlin continued the presentation.

Mayor Keener asked Ms. Laughlin why the assessed valuation dropped in 2011/2012.

Ms. Laughlin explained that there had been a drop twice. It dropped again in 17/18 and in 11/12.
It has to do with the abatements. She said she wished she had the full explanation. She has asked
for it several times from the County. There is one individual named Arty, who knows the answer.
He can’t provide us with the exact formula without us paying for his consultant fee. He is the one
that does the programing for the County.

Ms. Laughlin continued with the presentation.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked about the Stockman’s parking lot and there was some discussion
regarding plans for that parking lot.

II. NEW BUSINESS

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2018 Redevelopment Agency
Annual Report, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Pursuant to the provisions of NRS 279.586, the agency shall submit to the Director of the
Legislative Counsel Bureau, for transmittal to the Legislature, and to the legislative body
an annual report on a form prescribed by the Committee on Local Government Finance.

*** A Motion made by Councilman Robert Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Chip
Stone to accept the 2018 Redevelopment Agency Annual Report.

***Motion passed unanimously.

III. REPORTS



February 26, 2019 Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 3

A. Budget

Ms. Laughlin gave a report on the budget that was included in the packet. Also included
was a summary of how the expenses are broken out by project.

B. Other

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

There were no public comments made at this time.

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Redevelopment Agency reserves the right
to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or
delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

Mayor Reece Keener, Chairman
Redevelopment Agency



Agenda Item # I.A. 

 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action on the 2019 Storefront Improvement Grant 

Recipients and amounts allocated, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: May 21, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS    
 

4. Time Required: 10 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The 2019 Storefront improvement grant applications were open 

from January 1, 2019 to March 30, 2019.  The RDA has allocated $50,000 each year for 5 

years for storefront improvement grants.  The Redevelopment Advisory Council reviewed 

all applications at their meeting April 25, 2019.  There were 2 applications and both were 

deemed complete applications. Their recommendation to the RDA was to fund both projects 

as requested. 

 

6. Budget Information: 

  Appropriation Required: N/A 

  Budget amount available: $50,000 

  Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Required  Not Required 

   

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Staff Memo, spreadsheet, and 2 grant applications 

 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RDA 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, Redevelopment Manager 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Redevelopment Advisory Council 

 

12. Agency Action:  

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  



A
p

p
li

ca
n

t

B
u

si
n

e
ss

A
d

d
re

ss

A
P

N

 F
u

n
d

in
g 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 

 A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y 

R
D

A
 

 B
id

 #
1

 

 B
id

 #
2

 

 B
id

 #
3

 

 B
id

 #
4

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
ro

p
. T

ax

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

W
at

e
r 

B
il

l 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 L
ic

e
n

se

P
h

o
to

s 
o

f 
Ex

is
ti

n
g

D
e

si
gn

 o
f 

P
ro

je
ct

Zo
n

e
d

 P
ro

p
e

rl
y 

Susan Wright J.M. Capriola Co. 500 Commercial Street 001-343-001 16,997.50$                                 35,903.86$     62,079.00$     41,350.00$     x x x x x x

Catherine Wines Taber Building 407, 419, & 421 Railroad Street001-265-017 7,445.64$                                    14,891.27$     15,065.00$     15,195.00$     x x x x x x

Total Approved for 2019: -$               

2018 Storefront Improvement Grant Applications



























































































































Agenda Item # I.B. 

Created on 5/14/19 

 

Elko Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration and possible action on the remainder of funds from the 

2019 Storefront Improvement Grant review cycle, and matters related thereto. 

ACTION ITEM 
 

2. Meeting Date:  May 21, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

      

4. Time Required:  15 Minutes 

 

5. Background Information:  The Redevelopment Agency allocated $50,000 for the 2019 

Storefront Improvement Grants The 2019 application period ended March 30, 2018 

and there were two grant applications received for a total funding request of 

$24,443.14.  This leaves a balance of $25,556.86. The Storefront Improvement Grant 

Program Guidelines states: If the available, budgeted funding is not fully expended in 

any given application review cycle, applications will be accepted on a first-come, first-

served basis until all available, budgeted funding is exhausted”. The RDA has the 

option of extending the application review cycle as stated in the guidelines or 

allocating the remaining funds to the 2020 Storefront Improvement Grant. 

 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required:   

Budget amount available: $50,000 

Fund name:  Redevelopment Agency 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

     

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:   

 

9. Recommended Motion:  Pleasure of the RDA 

 

10. Prepared By:    Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:   

 

12. Agency Action:  

 

13. Agenda Distribution:   

 

 

 

   



Agenda Item # I.C. 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible authorization to refurbish the existing 

train in Centennial Park, and matters related thereto.  FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: May 21, 2019 

 

3.  Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

      

4. Time Required: 5 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: Byrnes Painting has offered to paint the train as a donation 

to the City of Elko. The paint is also being donated to the project. Several windows, 

mirrors, and misc. items will need to be replaced by other suppliers/city staff as part 

of the project. We would request an expenditure not to exceed $4,000 for the misc. 

items to be repaired or replaced. 

 

6. Budget Information:  

Appropriation Required: N/A  

Budget amount available: N/A 

Fund name: Redevelopment Fund 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

     

8. Supplemental Agenda Information:  

 

9. Recommended Motion: Move to approve the generous donation from Byrnes 

Painting and their paint supplier as well as the expenditure not to exceed $4,000 for 

misc. items for the refurbishment of the train in Centennial Park 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, Redevelopment Manager/City Planner 

 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 

12. Agency Action: 

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  









Agenda Item # I.D. 

City of Elko Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda Action Sheet 

 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of the design of Phase 1, Project 

3; Block Ends, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

 

2. Meeting Date: May 21, 2019 

 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS    
 

4. Time Required: 20 minutes 

 

5. Background Information: The RAC, at their April 25, 2019 meeting, moved to 

recommend to the RDA to accept the design as presented. There was discussion 

regarding adding hardscape areas for potential art but the motion didn’t include 

the change.  Staff is recommending that we do include the hardscape areas and 

include those areas as an add alternate in the bid process.  The proposed design is 

consistent with the 30% approved plans in which the RDA approved on May 10, 

2016. 

 

6. Budget Information: 

  Appropriation Required: N/A 

  Budget amount available: N/A 

  Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 

 

7. Business Impact Statement: Required / Not Required 

   

8. Supplemental Agenda Information 30% drawings, Block End Design 

 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RDA 

 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, Redevelopment Manager / City Planner 

  
11. Committee/Other Agency Review:  

 

12. Agency Action:  

 

13. Agenda Distribution:  



T

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

WWW

W W W W W W W W W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W W W W W W W W W

SS

W

W

W
W

6' 21.1'

6'19.7'

30 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

4TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



T

R

T

R

T

R

T

R

WWW

W W W W W W W W W

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

W W W W W W W W W

SS

W

W

W
W

6' 21.1'

6'19.7'

30 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

4TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



T

R

T

R

T

R

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

WWWW

WWW

W

SS SS
SS

SS

W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS
SS SS SS

W W
W W

W

5' 9.1'

5'9.2'

15 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



T

R

T

R

T

R

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

WWWW

WWW

W

SS SS
SS

SS

W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS
SS SS SS

W W
W W

W

5' 9.1'

5'9.2'

15 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



T

R

T

R

T

R

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

10" W

10" W

1
0
"
 
W

SSSS

S
S

S
S

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

W

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS
SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

W
W

6'23.8'

6' 20.6'

30 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

6TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



T

R

T

R

T

R

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

W W W W W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

10" W

10" W

1
0
"
 
W

SSSS

S
S

S
S

W

W

W

W
W

W

W

W

W
W

W

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS
SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

W
W

6'23.8'

6' 20.6'

30 FT DIAMETER

TREES

BLOCK ENDS DESIGN
CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

6TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ELKO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1751 COLLEGE AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELKO, NEVADA 89801

AutoCAD SHX Text
775-777-7210

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
U:\RDA\Downtown Corridor\DESIGN\CORRIDOR_DESIGN - 2017-4.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACAD 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/17/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=30'



Approved
Budget

As  of
5/15/2019

Approved
Budget

As of
5/15/2019

Beginning Fund Balance $803,514 Legal $20,000 $290
Budget to beginning fund balance dif. $47,208 Public Improvements
Property Tax Revenues (anticipated) $338,608 $370,877 Misc. items $1,000 $237
Interest Revenues (anticipated) $4,750 $11,623 Storefront Program (pledged 2017/18) $25,000
Transfer in from General Fund Storefront Program (pledged 2018/19) $55,105

Public-Private Partnerships $75,000
Expn. of Centennial Park 7th Street $215,631 $149,718

Total Revenues $1,194,080 $382,500 Balance towards savings $802,244
Revolving Fund $100

Balance to date $1,082,977 Total Expenses $1,194,080 $150,245

Redevelopment Agency 2018/2019 Budget
July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019

Revenues Expenditures

C:\Users\Sarchuleta\AppData\Local\Temp\NitroPDF\nitroSession12856\RDA Budget 2018-2019_1707315F
5/15/2019



------------------------------·-· 

Vol. 66, No. 2 

February 2 0 1 9  

Inside this issue 

Downtown rewards com 

muters who don't drive . . .  2  

Downtown builds good 

will, wins accolades for 

free roadside assistance 

for cyclists 4 

Weary of waiting for median 

construction, business 

district paints a mock-up 

on the street 5 

Underpass upgrade 

beautifies entrance to 

business district 6 

In thriving cities, down 

town housing commands 

a premium 7 

Overcoming opposition to 

two-way streets 10 

Banning cigarettes, beau 
tifying a garage, imple 
menting Quiet Zones, 

and more 11 

@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Quincy Interim Parking 
Plan: Report 

Durham Parking 
Program: Video 

Douglas Design District 
Street Painting: Video 

Duces Live Underpass 
Makeover: Video 

In Quincy, MA, (est. pop. 

94, 166), a redevelopment boom 
is bearing fruit at precisely the 
wrong time, at least from a parking 
perspective. 

While the downtown has seen 
an influx of tenants and traffic in 
recent years, two aging parking 

garages became structurally unsound 
and were forced to close. Quincy 

has a solution in its sights: The city 
is building a 712-space parking 

garage scheduled for completion in 
October 2019 .  

Until those spots become avail 
able, however, Quincy has a parking 

The alleys in Louisville, KY ( est. 

pop. 6 16 ,261 ) ,  are lined with dirty, 
dinged, and rusty doors. There's 
nothing unusual about that, but 

Louisville's response was an atypical 
one: The city created an "Alley Gal 

lery" that beautified ugly doors with 
works created by local artists. 

In an innovative twist on the 
trend toward public art, the Lou 

isville Downtown Partnership has 

crunch. To ease the squeeze, Quincy 

has implemented a variety of strate 
gies. At one city lot, Quincy more 

than doubled parking rates before 
5 p.m. and offered free parking after 

5 p.m. The city also worked with 

churches to use their lots during 
the week. Quincy also added valet 
services and shuttles, and it i l lumi  

nated an unwelcoming alleyway that 
nighttime visitors avoided. 

The Boston suburb's downtown 
is known as Quincy Center, and the 

Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority (MBTA) parking garage 

( Continued on page 3) 

decorated more than 120 of the city's 

300-plus alley doors with works 
by local artists. The Alley Gallery 

program won a 20 18  award from the 
International Downtown Association. 

Rebecca Matheny, executive 

director of the Louisville Downtown 
Partnership, tells Downtown Idea 

Exchange that the city wanted to 
create a public art project that was 

(Continued on page 9) 

ATTRACTION 

"Alley Gal lery" brings pub l i c  art to 
downtrodden doors 

ACCESS AND MOBILITY 

Parking management p lan frees 
up  hundreds of unused spaces 

©  2019 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved. 



ACCESS AND MOBILITY 

Downtown rewards commuters who don't drive 

Downtown Development.com 

To see a video about 
Durham's parking 
program, go to our 
website and cl ick on 
"Web Extras." 

Like many cities, Durham, NC, wants 

commuters to take the bus, ride their bikes, and 

generally find ways to get downtown other than 

the standard solo drive. 

Unlike most cities, Durham (est. pop. 

267,743) is tapping into the discipline of 

behavioral economics to change drivers' behav 

ior. Durham's downtown is booming, and the 

growth of employment and residences has cre 

ated traffic congestion. 

In late 20 18 ,  Durham's parking program 

won a $ 1  mil l ion grant from the Bloomberg 

Philanthropies U.S .  Mayors Challenge, money 

that wi l l  help the city continue its innovative 

efforts to nudge commuters to alternate forms of 

transport. By one estimate, adding new parking 

spots costs $24,000 per space - an expense 

Durham would prefer to avoid. 

"Durham wants to shape its future growth 

on the mobility options of people and not cars," 

Mayor Steve Schewe! said in announcing the 

award. "The ideas developed through the Mayors 

Challenge helped us divert scarce resources 

away from parking decks and toward a public 

transportation system that will truly further Dur 

ham's vision of shared economic prosperity." 

Even a modest reduction in car trips can pay 

big dividends for a city. 

"That means we don't have to build that next 

$23 mil l ion parking garage," Schewe! says. 

Durham has been testing two low-cost 

methods to discourage commuters from single- 

Ryan, 
Presenting your handpicked mode & rout@ to work 

We want more City of Durham employees to bus, bike, walk, and rideshare to 

work. Will you join others and drive less to downtown? Help Durham reduce 

traffic congestion and grow sustainably. 

' ;i� •• • 'f � � t,; ,... ' • - • ' . 

'�xour� 
'�  � ,  - "" '  '  

We mapped your other modes and routes to work 

.Joytand 

Custom maps show alternate routes to downtown. 

occupancy commutes to downtown Durham. 

Personalized route. The first strategy, a 

planning tool algorithm, creates a personal 

ized route that lays out options for walking 

and taking the bus, along with time compari 

sons. The tool stresses the health benefits and 

financial savings brought by alternate forms of 

commuting. 

The city tested the tool by sending it to 

1 ,000 workers during 2018.  Commuters who 

received the personalized route reported using 

travel alternatives, instead of driving alone, 

12 percent more than employees that did not 

receive it, the city says. 

To enhance the pitch, the mapping tool uses 

breezy language. "Driving downtown Durham is 

so 2017," reads one example. 

Weekly lottery. Durham's second strategy 

is the GoDurham bus lottery. It's a game that 

makes riding the bus a competition. There's also 

an incentive: City employees who take the bus 

are eligible for a weekly windfall. In one case, 

the pot was $163 .  

Commuters who played the weekly bus lot 
tery reported commuting by alternative modes 

of transportation 1 9  percent more often. They 

also reported higher levels of happiness and 

lower levels of stress, the city says. 

The city worked with Duke University 

researchers to find ways to encourage commut 
ers to get out of their cars. The personalized 

routes were enough to nudge some commuters 

onto the bus, says Duke's Joseph Sherlock. 

And in the case of the lottery, the city 
tapped into the reality that even a modest prize 

can sway commuters' decisions. 

"Humans have an amazing ability to think 

we have a bigger chance [of winning] than we 

do," Sherlock told City Lab. "So we just took 

that insight and applied that to trying to encour 
age a pro-social behavior." 

Durham also offers free commuter con 
sultations for downtown workers. A city 

transportation specialist makes 20-minute 

appointments to tell commuters about modes of 

transportation, routes, and transit apps. l!lII 

2 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



Parking management p lan frees up  hundreds 
Of unused spaces -Continuedjimnpagel 

there was razed in 20 12 .  Then, in 2016 ,  a  city 

garage closed. 

Losing two garages amid an increase in 

downtown traffic meant that parking, once 

abundant, was no longer plentiful in the city. 

"In the matter of a handful of years, 

a parking crunch was created in Quincy 

Center," Chris Cassani, Quincy's director of 

traffic, parking, alarm, and lighting, says in 

Parking Today. "At first, the loss of parking 

was manageable, as the city-owned lots had 

historically been underutilized. It wasn't until 

20 18  that the full scale of that crunch would 

be realized." The sudden shortage of spaces 

called for a multi-pronged approach to park 

ing. In one challenge, Cassani says MBTA 

commuters were taking advantage of the 

city's cheap parking while they spent the day 

in Boston. 

So Quincy raised rates at the Ross Lot, 

a city-owned property devoted to surface 

parking. The price for parking for six hours or 

more jumped to $20 from $8.  

"The purpose of this increase is not to 

generate revenue, but rather to dissuade 

parkers from capitalizing on the city's artifi 

cially low daily parking rates and to preserve 

precious spaces for parkers doing business 

in Quincy Center rather than parking in 

downtown Quincy and taking the MBTA to 

downtown Boston," the city says. 

To maximize spaces and utilization at 

the Ross Lot, Quincy enlarged the northern 

section of the lot and hired a valet service at a 

cost of $12 ,500 per month. Because the Ross 

Lot empties after 5 p .m. ,  the city opened the 

lot for free parking to patrons of restaurants, 

bars, and other nighttime businesses. 

The combination of enlarging the Ross 

Lot and adding valet service expanded that 

property's capacity from 292 spaces to 350 

spots. 

In another upgrade, the city added lights 

and signage to a dimly lit alleyway connect 

ing the Ross Lot to the core of Quincy Center. 

The improvements made the alley a more 

Property owners contribute to 
program's success 

Even with those extra spaces, the city st i l l  

faced a shortfall. So Quincy struck deals with 

churches and other private property owners to 

provide daytime parking. 

St. John's Church and Covenant Church 

agreed to provide up to 73 spaces for con 

struction workers. Central Baptist and Christ 

Church opened their lots to daytime weekday 

parking for holders of monthly permits. 

The Neighborhood Club of Quincy agreed 

to provide 120 spaces. Because the club lot 

is about half a mile from the heart of down 

town, the city offers 

shuttle services to and 

from the lot. The shuttle 

costs $46,000 a month to 

operate. 

While those tactics 

addressed daytime 

parking, Quincy's 

restaurants, bars, and 

merchants needed 

parking at night and on 

weekends. So Cassani 

got to work at the task 

of building relationships 

with other downtown 

landowners. 

The Quincy District 

Courthouse agreed to 

allow free parking in its 

lot after 5 p.m. weekdays 

and all day on weekends. 

Quincy also persuaded 

an insurance company 

headquartered in the city 

to provide free parking to restaurant goers 

after normal work hours Thursday through 

Saturday. 

To convey the complicated catalog of 

changes, the city embarked on a cornmuni- 

Three steps to ease a 
parking squeeze 

welcoming pathway from parking to restau 

rants, Cassani says. 

Better uti l ization and manage 

ment of current parking supply 

can often help a downtown meet 

parking demand without the need 

to bui ld new facilities. In Parking 

Management Best Practices, author 

Todd Litman focuses on the 

actions downtown can take: 

• Increase the efficiency of existing 

parking through sharing, regulat 

ing, and pricing. 

• Use signage and maps to provide 

better information to drivers. 

• Improve maintenance, security, 

and pedestrian access to increase 

the number of useable parking 

spaces. 

February 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 3 



DowntownDevelopment.com 

To see Quincy's parking 
plan, go to our website 
and cl ick on "Web 
Extras." 

cations campaign. That included wayfinding 

signs directing drivers to free parking, along 

with social media ads, videos, and printed 

media. City officials also made sure to meet 

with restaurateurs to inform them of the 

changes. 

Through it all, the city stuck to the mantra 

that despite gripes about a parking shortage, 

there are plenty of spaces downtown. 

Addressing Quincy's temporary parking 

crunch was hard work, Cassani says - but 

also rewarding. 

"While at times chaotic," Cassani says, 

"the process created an opportunity for city 

officials to work more closely with its down 

town merchant community." 

Contact: Christopher Cassani, City of Quincy, 

617-376-1936. llil] 

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES 

Downtown bu i lds  good wi l l ,  wins accolades 
for free roadside assistance for cyclists 

A bike commuter who gets a flat tire in 

downtown Hartford, CT ( est. pop 123,400), 

doesn't need to drag the disabled cycle home 

or lock it to a lamppost. 

Cyclists can call the downtown district's 

free roadside assistance program. Within 

1 0  minutes or so, help arrives, in the form of 

a yellow-shirted staffer bearing tools, tubes, 

and patch kits. 

Since Hartford launched the pro 

gram in May 2017, it has won rave 

reviews from stranded cyclists. 

For Jordan Polon, executive 

director of the Hartford Business 

Improvement District, the roadside assistance 

program achieves many goals. It encourages 

commuters to travel by a mode other than car, 

and the free repairs exude a welcoming vibe 

to workers and employers. 

Perhaps the best part of the program is 

its modest cost. Polan tells Downtown idea 

Exchange the Hartford Business Improvement 

District spends less than $500 a year on bike 

repairs. 

The major expense is training for ambas 

sadors, who complete a four-hour course to 

learn to fix bicycles. In another modest invest 

ment, the Business Improvement District 

bought a repair kit that includes a tire pump, 

tire levers, wrenches and other tools, a patch 

kit, chain lube, and disposable gloves. 

"It is something you can add to the ser 

vices you offer for such a low cost," Polan 

says. "For the amount it costs us to run this 

program every year, what we get back is so 

worth it." 

In the program's first s ix months, Hartford 

Business Improvement District ambassadors 

responded to 78 calls for bicycle roadside 

assistance. Flat tires were the most common 

problem. 

Ambassadors typically arrive within 1 5  

minutes, and a repair usually takes 10 minutes, 

Polan says. If the fix is more complicated, an 

ambassador sends the cyclist to a bicycle shop. 

The service is available to anyone cycling 

in the 55-block Hartford Business Improve 

ment District. 
Downtown commuter Maureen Hart was 

one of the cyclists to call for roadside assis 

tance. When her bike got a flat tire, Hart was 

partly prepared. She had a replacement tube. 

However, she didn't have a pump. 

Hart's review: "What a great service!" 

Hartford boosters launched the program 

in part because there's no bike shop located 

within the Business Improvement District. 

"If we had a bike shop in the district, we 

wouldn't necessarily be doing the program," 

Polon says. 

Polan calls her organization the first busi 

ness improvement district to offer roadside 

"For the amount it costs 

us to run this program 

every year, what we get 

back is so worth it." 

4 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



assistance for cyclists. Hartford already had a 

roadside assistance program for motorists, and 

a committee member who's a bike commuter 

suggested extending the service to bikes. 

"It was such an amazing idea," Polon says. 

"We jumped on it immediately." 

To spread the word about the new program, 

the Hartford Business Improvement District 

distributed 5,000 postcards, placing them in 

libraries and in the lobbies of apartment build 

ings and several major employers. 

Eddie Zayas is one of the roadside ambas 

sadors, and he says stranded cyclists almost 

always need flat repair. 

"I can repair those in a couple minutes," 

Zayas told the Associated Press. "People love 

it. They are always trying to pay me. I tell 

them, 'No, it's a free service."' 

The volume of roadside assistance calls 

decreased after Lime Bikes introduced bike 

sharing in Hartford in 20 l 8. 

In addition to the roadside assistance pro 

gram, Polon is considering adding Dero repair 

stations. That company sells small kiosks that 

include a pump and bicycle tools. A typical 

Dero device costs about $1 ,200. 

Contact: Jordan Polan, Hartford Business Improve 

ment District, 860-728-2289. ml 

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES 

Weary of waiting for median construction, business 
district paints a mock-up on the street 

In Wichita, KS (est. pop. 390,591  ), Janelle 

King grew frustrated at the slow pace of 

streetscape changes in the Douglas Design 

District, a three-mile stretch of independent 

businesses. 

The city signed off on a $6.7 million 

proposal to beautify Douglas Avenue in 2009, 

but year after year the project was pushed 

aside as other budget items took priority. The 

delays annoyed King, president of the nonprofit 

Douglas Design District and owner of The 

Workroom, a store that sells furniture and home 

decor items. 

So King huddled with the Douglas Design 

District's board to talk about ways to get the 

ball rolling. Their brainstorm: Paint a mock 

up of the median and crosswalks on Douglas 

Avenue so business owners, residents, and 

shoppers could get a feel for the changes. 

The idea was compelling on many levels. 

Painting the street would show that neighbor 

hood leaders remained serious about upgrading 

their business district - but at minimal cost in 

terms of money, time, and disruption. 

So one day in April, the city closed down 

the middle lanes of the thoroughfare for a few 

hours. City crews brought paint and sprayed 

the redesign on the street, and Douglas Design 

District recruited volunteers to hold 10-foot 

by-12-foot stencils and add touch-up details. 

Students from Wichita State University 

and Wichita East High School pitched in. As 

they worked, volunteers got some local flavor 

from Douglas Design District merchants. Rev 

erie Coffee Roasters served java, and Jimmy's 

Egg supplied breakfast burritos. 

Reimagined street boasts a brightly colored median and bump outs. 

February 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 5 



DowntownDevelopment.com 

To see a video of 
the street-painting 
in Wichita, go to our 
website and click on 
"Web Extras." 

Douglas Design District was able to com 

plete the project for just $10,000, an amount 

covered by a donation from a local resident, 

King says. 

The cheap-and-easy project helped soften 

opposition to the streetscape makeover, which 

calls for transforming a center turn lane into 

a landscaped median. Some business owners 

had objected to the streetscape proposal as 

disruptive. 

"People can be worried about change, 

scared of change," King says. "Then they see it 

and they're like, 'Oh, that's not that bad.'" 

The proposal calls for the four-lane 

Douglas Avenue to keep two lanes of traffic in 

each direction. King says the street-painting 

exercise illustrates that changes can be made 

to upgrade the street without slowing traffic or 

reducing lanes. 

It also gets motorists accustomed to new 

traffic patterns should the project be completed 

in the future. King hopes the real median wi l l  

be bui l t  in 2022. 

The mock-up also gives the city and the 

Douglas Design District a chance to test the 

plan before workers start pouring concrete. One 

potential area for adjustment: angled parking, 

which has raised some safety concerns. 

District faces growing pains 

The streetscape project is just one sign of 

momentum in the Douglas Design District, 

an area that's generating new buzz. In July, 

the organization won a grant of $84,500 from 

the Knight Foundation, money that will go to 

public art. The Knight Foundation invests in 

projects that revitalize urban cores, and King 

saw the award as a validation of the Douglas 

Design District's long-term plans. 

Bike-share and scooter-share vendors are 

coming to the neighborhood. And while King 

has been juggling her role at the all-volunteer 

Douglas Design District with the demands of 

running a business, she aims to create a busi 

ness improvement district with a full-time 

executive director. 

Like many Midwestern cities, Wichita has 

been losing educated residents to larger cities 

with more robust job markets. King sees the 

Douglas Design District - which bills itself as 

Wichita's "corridor of creativity" - as a way 

to appeal to young workers. 

There have been some growing pains, of 

course. Douglas Design District has plenty of 

hip new arrivals, such as a boot camp studio 

and a makerspace, along with such businesses 

as The Donut Whole, Hopping Gnome Brew 

ing Co., and Central Standard Brewing. 

They share the neighborhood with longtime 

tenants l ike auto-parts stores, used car dealers, 

and labor staffing offices. King says her hope is 

to unite the old guard and the new arrivals. 

King, for her part, says she took on a 

high-profile role in the Douglas Design District 

because it 's good for business. 

"My concern was if we're not driving 

people down here, I won't have a business," she 

says. 

Contact: Janelle King, Douglas Design District, 

316-295-4520. m 

ATTRACTION 

Underpass upgrade beautifies entrance 
to business district 

In St. Petersburg, FL ( est. pop. 263,255), the 

downtown business district known as the Deuces 

has been in a long decline, in part because Inter 

state 275 cuts through the neighborhood. 

In an effort to make the area more aes 

thetically pleasing, the nonprofit Deuces Live 

pushed to spruce up the 1-275 underpass with 

murals, lighting, and landscaping. After years 

of planning, the project final ly was completed 

in late 20 J7  and early 20 1 8 .  

The project is part of the economic revi 

talization plan for St. Petersburg's 22nd Street 

6 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



\ 

underpass makeover 
program. go to our 
website and cl ick on 
"Web Extras." 

"The goal was to tum something very ugly 
into something beautiful," Gloria Campbell, 
a 22nd Street South business owner and past 
president of Deuces Live, told The Weekly 

Challenger. 

The approval process included funding 
and contracts from the city's engineering depart 
ment, the OK of the city council, and the consent 
of the Florida Department of Transportation. DowntownDevelopment.com 

The project was funded by Penny for To see a video about the 
Pinellas, the countywide sales tax init iative in 
Pinel las County, and by the city's Art All iance 
and Public Arts Commission. 

Underpass projects have gained favor in 
some urban areas. In New Orleans, for instance, 
an elevated stretch of Interstate 10 disrupted the 
Claiborne business district. Residents adapted by 
painting murals on bridge abutments and setting 
up pushcarts and pop-up shops. 

Contact: veatrice Farrell, Deuces Live, 

121-433-s231. m 

A radio host once set up in the underpass 
and broadcasted from the location. 

Before the makeover, the underpass was 
fenced off and strewn with trash. The sidewalks 
were in poor repair. 

South business district, a once-thriving area 
that was home to 100 independent businesses 
before falling on tough times. The city says it 

1. spent nearly $500,000 on the makeover, which 
includes murals that adorn the concrete beneath 
the interstate. 

"We think it 's had a positive impact," says 
Veatrice Farrell, executive director of Deuces 
Live. "It's the gateway to the Deuces, and it 
provides a significant v isual appeal." 

Alas, the upgrade has been accompanied by 
disappointment. The underpass was designed 
with striking blue lighting but the lights worked 
only intermittently for much of 20 1 8 .  

"The landscaping is beautiful, and the 
murals are eye-catching," Farrell tells Down 

town Idea Exchange. "But the lights have been 
out consistently since March." 

She has been pushing the city to fix the 
problem . 

In the meantime, the underpass includes 
sidewalks that are wide enough to make the area 
something of a destination and gathering place. 

"People wi l l  stop and take pictures in the 
underpass," Farrell says . "They'l l  hang out in 
the underpass." 

ECONOMIC GROWTH 

I n  t h r i v i n g  c i t i e s ,  downtown h o u s i n g  
c o m m a n d s  a  p r e m i u m  

In many of the nations largest cit ies ,  

homes near the city center are sel l ing at a 
significant premium according to an analysis 
by Zillow, the onl ine real estate marketplace. 

While the trend illustrates the viability 
and desirability of downtown areas, it also 
creates unintended consequences, Z illow 
says. One is longer commutes : With many 
homebuyers priced out of city centers, young 

workers increasingly are settling in the suburbs. 
The disconnect between urban jobs and 

suburban residents wil l  contribute to longer, 

more crowded commutes, Z i l low says. 
And that trend will only reinforce the 

value of downtown homes. Zi l low notes that 
buyers who pay a premium to live close to 
work are essentially buying their way out of 
long commutes. 

February 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 7 



Over a 30-year career, cutting 15 minutes 

each way from a twice-daily, five-times-a 

week commute adds up to five months. 

"In this sense, it's no wonder we're willing 

to pay more for the privilege of living closer to 

downtown," Zillow says. 

Zil low analyzed price trends in 34 major 

metro areas. The downtown premium was 

most pronounced in such boomtowns as 

Austin, Boston, San Francisco, Seattle, and 

Washington, DC, but it held true in most cities, 

including Chicago, Dallas, and Minneapolis. 

In only five cities did downtown homes 

sell at a discount: Baltimore, Cleveland, 

Detroit, Kansas City, and Indianapolis. In 

Baltimore and Cleveland, downtown homes 

fetched just 52 percent as much as homes far 

ther from the urban cores. 

Those cities, of course, stand out as Rust 

Belt locales largely left out of the booms in 

technology and other growing sectors of the 

U.S .  economy. 

In general, cities with thriving labor mar 

kets boast the heftiest premiums for downtown 

living. The San Francisco and Boston metro 

areas had rock-bottom unemployment rates of 

just 2.6 percent in October, according to the 

U.S .  Labor Department. Both metro areas also 

have median wages well above national norms. 

At the opposite end of the labor spectrum, 

Cleveland's unemployment rate of 4.5 percent 

was the worst among large U.S. metro areas. 

Detroit's 4.4 percent wasn't far behind. 

Nationally, the unemployment rate stood 

at 3.7 percent in September, October, and 

November. IJ!lll 

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES 

Before unvei l ing mobi l ity p lan,  city engages 
in  fact-finding miss ions 

Long-term street redesign 

development spent a day on a busy downtown 

street, counting people and noting if they were 

on bikes, walking dogs, using crosswalks, and 

otherwise using public spaces. 

The result was a mobility plan that calls 

for an integrated system of bike lanes, bus 

ways, train stations, trolley routes, sidewalks, 

and roads. Bike sharing and car sharing play a 

prominent role, and the plan calls for streets to 

be shaded during the day and well-lit at night. 

While some streets require complete 

rebuilding to accommodate all of the proposed 

street elements, some streets can be trans 

formed relatively quickly with re-striping and 

minor construction to enhance the street. These 

projects can also be done to quickly implement 

safety improvements that are needed while 

funding for longer-term changes is secured, 

says the city. 

West Palm Beach has more than $2 billion 

of new development on the drawing board, 

and if all the new workers and residents drive 

downtown, the result could be gridlock. IJ!lll 

The city of West Palm Beach, FL (est. pop. 

1 10 ,222) ,  has adopted a vision for its transpor 

tation future that aims to nudge 

commuters out of cars and onto 

trolleys, buses, and bicycles. 

But first, the city engaged in 

a research mission that involved 

a trip to Europe, surveying local 

residents, and observing down 

town traffic patterns. 

West Palm Beach officials 

started with a grant-funded trip 

to Copenhagen, the Danish city 

" noted for its walkability. Next 

came a "Favorite Places Survey," 

in which city officials asked resi 

dents about what they wanted in 

the city, their favored destina 

tions and their preferred modes 

of transportation, the Palm Beach 

Post reports. 

In the next phase of research, 

the city's director of economic 

Today 

8 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



"Alley Gallery" brings publ ic  art to 
downtrodden dOOrS -Continuedfrompage 1 

different from the building murals and util 

ity box wraps that have become common in 

downtowns everywhere. 

"We're a town of alleys, and we're also 

a town of artists, and we have so many doors 

that are unattractive," Matheny says. 

One before-and-after shot of an alleyway 

door depicts a surface covered with graffiti and 

grime turned into a work of art. However, the 

doorknob is still missing, reflecting the limits 

of the Alley Gallery as a renovation tool. 

"It's really up to each owner to decide 

if that's the only improvement they want to 

make," Matheny says. 

But Matheny's hope is that by calling 

attention to an overlooked part of the city's 

streetscape, the Alley Gallery might spur 

property owners to spruce up the backs of their 

buildings. 

"We're calling it the dirty-sock effect," 

Matheny says. "If you leave a dirty sock on the 

floor for three days, you're not going to pick it 

up, because you stop noticing it." 

Meanwhile, the results from an attraction 

standpoint have been heartening, she says. 

While the city is unable to measure how many 

people have viewed the alleyway installations, 

the artworks give visitors a reason to linger 

downtown. 

Louisville Downtown Partnership created 

a GPS-based map that lets pedestrians and 

cyclists take self-guided tours. Matheny 

says she often sees downtown visitors stand 

ing in front of the doorways and discussing 

them. In one memorable case, Matheny 

spotted a Somali family that had stopped to 

discuss a doorway in a language Matheny 

didn' t  understand. 

"People are going around and looking 

at these things," she says. "And it's people 

from all walks of life. It doesn't appeal just to 

people who like art, or people who like alleys." 

To pay for the Alley Gallery, Louisville 

Downtown Partnership presented the idea to 

possible sponsors, and Matheny says she was 

surprised by the strong response. Nearly 20 

sponsors jumped on the opportunity, with 

Marriott Downtown, the Louisville Conven 

tion and Visitors Bureau, the Hyatt Regency, 

Mulloy Commercial Real Estate, Louisville 

Water Co., and U.S .  Rep. John Yarmuth 

among the backers. Louisville's parking 

authority, which owns a number of downtown 

alley doors, was one of the project's unex 

pected benefactors. 

"Nobody would think the parking 

authority would necessarily invest in 

public art, but they've been one of 

our strongest supporters," Matheny 

says. 

Underwriters pay $645 to sponsor 

a single door or $1 ,200 for a double 

door. The sponsors view a gallery 

of images submitted by 

local artists and choose an 

appropriate image. 

The sponsorship fee 

covers the cost of clean 

ing and prepping a door, 

creating a vinyl version of 

the painting to cover the 

door, putting a museum 

style sign on the wall next 

to the door, and affixing 

an Alley Gallery "fin 

sign" at the entrance to 

the alleyway. 

Louisville Downtown 

Partnership also pays $300 

to an artist for use of their 

work. 

"One of our guiding principles is nobody 

works for free," Matheny says. 

The sponsorship fee also includes a 

reserve to pay for a new vinyl wrap should a 

delivery truck or vandal damage a door. 

"Remarkably enough, they haven't been 

tagged," Matheny says. "People have been 

very respectful." 

The Alley Gallery began in mid-2017 , 

and the city continues to solicit new works 

of art. There's no public approval process for 

February 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 9 



the images put on the alley doors, and, as of 

late December, none of the work had proven 

controversial, Matheny says. 

To see the art, artist submission packet, 

and sponsor information packet go to louis 

villedowntown.org/alleygallery. 

Contact: Rebecca Matheny, Louisville Downtown 

Partnership, 502-584-6000. IJlEI 

ACCESS AND MOBILITY 

Overcoming opposit ion to two-way streets 

For over a year, the City of Lynchburg, 

VA (est. pop. 80,995), has been working 

on a plan to address the future growth and 

development of the city center. The Down 

town 2040 plan builds on the successes of 

the city's 2000 Downtown & Riverfront 

Master Plan and sets new goals for the next 

20 years. 

Community outreach and participation 

were fundamental components in develop 

ing the Downtown 2040 Plan. Engagement 

and outreach included a project web page, 

kick-off event where attendees learned about 

"why place matters," an on-line survey, five 

public listening sessions, nine pop-up events 

around the city, and a three-day design 

workshop. 

The draft plan addresses a number of areas 

including Historic and architectural resources; 

Public space and recreation, Parking, Mobility 

and accessibility; Business development and 

marketing. 

One aspect of the plan, which drew concern 

from business owners was the recommendation 

to convert two main streets from one-way to 

two-way traffic. The goal is to slow traffic and 

enhance walkability, but business owners worry 

about the ability to receive deliveries. 

The proposed solution says the city's lead 

planning and design consultant is to desig 

nate parking spaces which are used as loading 

zones during certain times of the day. During 

the remainder of the day, the spots revert to 

regular on-street parking. IJlEI 

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES 

Pedestrian barrier offers affordable 
solution for traffic ca lming 

Concrete is the go-to material for pedes 

trian safety infrastructure, but it also can be 

expensive and time consuming to install .  The 

Chicago suburb of Oak Park, IL (est. pop. 

52,261 ), is testing a comparatively cheap, 

flexible strategy to improve an intersection. 

Workers installed a traffic calming barrier 

known as a "neckdown" at an intersection in 

Oak Park, according to StreetsBlog. The bar 

rier separates pedestrians from motorists with 

steel rails bolted into the pavement. High 

visibility, flexible posts aim to keep drivers 

from running into the barrier. 

The rails can be used temporarily or per 

manently. The village of Oak Park installed 

the barrier near Washington Irving elemen 

tary school. During busy pickup and drop-off 

times, impatient drivers would maneuver 

around painted road markings, nearly hitting 

children and parents. 

The railings narrowed the width of the car 

designated part of the road from 3 1  feet to less 

than 16 feet. The barrier took just three hours 

to install, and suppliers of the systems say 

they cost a fraction of the price tag for pouring 

concrete. IJlEI 

1 0  Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



I d e a  Exchange 

FIRM/ORGANIZATION 

NAME 

ZIP STATE 

36 Midvale Road. Suite 2E 
Mountain Lakes. NJ 07046 

(973) 402-6056 

1ijr PHONE: (973) 265-2300 

@ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopment.com 

* US $246. Canada $251. Elsewhere $267. 

ISSN 0012-5822 

Downtown 
l d e a  Exchange 

A publication of the Downtown Development Center 
36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 Phone: (973) 265-2300 • Fax: (973) 402-60561' Email: info@DowntownDevelopmenLcorn Website: DowntownDevelopment.com 

Editor 
Jeff Ostrowski, ext. 110 

jostrowski@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Technical Editor 
Laurence A. Alexander 

Customer Service 
Mary Pagliaroli, ext. 101 

mpag I iaroli@Downtown Development. com 

Reprints and Permissions 
Michael Dewitt, ext. 107 

mjdewitt is Downtownllevelopmen t.com 

Publisher 
Margaret DeWitt, ext. 106 

msdewi tt@Downtown Development. com 

Downtown ldea Exchange" is published monthly by 

the Downtown Development Center. The Center 

provides news, information and data for successful 

downtown revitalization through its newsletters. books. 

reports. and website. 

') Alexander Communications Group 
' © 2019 Alexander Communications 

Croup. Ille. All rights reserved. No part af this pub 

lication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval 
system, or transmitted in any form or by any mem1s. 

electronic, mechanical. photocopying or otherwise, 
without the prior written permission of Alexander 
Communications Group. 

Subscription Order Form: 

' - - - - - · - - � - - -  ----�--- - ' PHONE 

, =T1T=LE�-·--------·----- --- 

: ADDRES-S -- 

i � - -   

i  

,EM� 
I 

l � D  MAIL 

bd:J FAX 

! Please start/renew my one-year 
subscription to Downtown Idea 
Exchange for $246.* 

To see u us  report on agnhoods. 
go to Downtown Development 
com and click on "Web Extras." 

Wrapping up a garage 
makeover 

An unattractive multi-story 

parking garage in downtown Sal is 
bury, MD, got a quick facelift over 
the summer. In antic ipation of the 
National Folk Festival held in Sep- 

of garbage can cigarette receptacles, 
distribution of portable ashtrays, 
and pub l i c  outreach. 

The smoking ban could inc lude 
the entire footprint of the Downtown 

Development Authority or selected 
areas such as Ma in Street, down 

town breezeways, and al leys. 
As a first step, the authority con 

ducted a city-wide op in ion survey. 

"Agrihoods" take root 

From Massachusetts to Cal i   
fornia, real estate developers are 

marketing "agrihoods," develop 
ments that inc lude community 

farms. The trend has gained enough 
traction that the Urban Land Insti 
tute (UL I )  created a report devoted 

to the phenomenon.  
"Agrihoods are part of a growing 

movement of food-centric develop 

ment that is br inging consumers 
closer to the growers and producers 

of their food," UL I  says. 
In urban locations, a commu 

nity farm can help address a lack of 
healthy food choices. For example, 
in the Bronx, NY, Arbor House is a 

124-unit affordable hous ing project 
that inc ludes a 10,000-square-foot 
rooftop farm. 

Banning cigarette smoking 

Longmont, CO, has joined other 
cit ies considering bann ing cigarette 
smoking downtown. The Colorado 
Clean Air Act currently prohibits 
smoking within 1 5  feet of any publ ic 
entrance. 

The potential ban follows a year 
in which cigarette litter was reduced 
in the city center by 40 percent says 
the Longmont Downtown Develop 
ment Authority. 

In  2018 ,  Longmont received 
a grant from the Keep America 
Beautiful Cigarette Litter Prevention 
Program which funded instal lat ion 

Bui ld ing businesses 
one cup of coffee at a time 

The Downtown Long Beach Al l i   
ance is one of many downtown and 

local economic development organi 
zations that wi l l  host 1 M i l l i on  Cups 
events in 2019 .  

Based on the idea that entrepre 
neurs discover so lut ions and engage 
with their communit ies over a mi l   
l ion cups of coffee, the Ewing Marion 
Kauffman Foundat ion developed 
1 Mi l l ion Cups in 20 12  - a  free pro 
gram designed to educate, engage, 
and insp ire entrepreneurs around 
the country. 

The Long Beach event takes 
place on the first Wednesday of 
each month from 7:30 to 9:00 a .m .  
Entrepreneurs, innovators, funders, 

early stage tech start ups, and other 
community members interested in 
investing in Long Beach are invited 
to attend the sessions. 

Detai ls on bringing a 1 M i l l i on  

Cups program to your city are at 
www.1mi l l ioncups .com. 

February 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 1 1  



I d e a  

pay for safety improvements at, 
"25 rai lroad crossings throughout 
the proposed zone to push down 
the heightened risk of at-grade 
crashes in the absence of a horn. 
About $5.5 mi l l ion for the project is 
in the city's fiscal year 2022 capital 
improvements program." m 

Water trails to grow downtown tourism 

Improved quality of life, economic development, tourism, and work 

force recruitment are al l  goals of the Greater Des Moines Water Trails 

and Greenways P lan.  

Adopted in 2016, the plan envisions developing water recreation 

across 150  miles of the region's creeks and rivers, inc luding places for 

tubing, birding, hik ing, paddl ing, boating, and fishing, along with the 

establishment of greenways, floodplain protection, and improved habitat. 

Central to the plan is activating the Des Moines River in downtown Des 
Moines through dam mitigation, shorel ine improvements, fishing nodes, 

tube and boat rentals, bird viewing areas, and other amenities. 

Late 2018  saw the release of an economic impact study for the proj 

ect which shows that the planned adventure park and whitewater venues 

in downtown Des Moines 

wi l l  break even within the 

first five years of opera 

tion. By the fifth year, direct 

spending into the economy 

is projected at $26 mi l l ion 

to $32 mi l l ion annual ly. 

"We knew water trai ls 

would boost tourism and 

economic development, 

and the economic analy 

sis confirms it," says Greg Edwards, CEO of Catch Des Moines, the area's 

marketing organization. "This study gives us confidence that water trails 

wi l l  be a major contributor to the regional economy." 

Planners hope to raise about one-third of the cost for the project 

from donations. The rest would be paid for with local, state, and 

federal dol lars. 

a Federal Rai lroad Administrat ion 
Quiet Zone, which requires replac 
ing train horns with comparable 
safety measures. 

This process is further a long 
in Bryan, TX, which is implement 
ing a downtown quiet zone. The 

Eagle reports that the city wi l l  

Locating cannabis  
businesses 

tember, the city made improvements 
to the exterior of the garage as well 
as adding a new food truck parking 
area next to the bu i ld ing .  The garage 
facelift inc ludes new banner signage, 
l ighting, and a fu l l -bu i ld ing wrap 
which display the city's logo. 

Downtowns cont inue to grapple 
with issues surrounding locations for 
mar ijuana bus inesses .  In  one recent 
example, the City of Paso Robles, CA, 

den ied Dubs Green Garden a l icense 
to run its del ivery operat ions from a 

downtown commerc ia i  property. The 
New Times reports that, Dubs in i t ia l ly 
fi led an appea l  of the city's den ia l ,  
but eventual ly decided to locate 

outs ide of the city center. 
For more on locating marijuana 

businesses downtown see Downtown 

Idea Exchange August 20 18 .  

Quiet Zone to enhance 
qual ity of life 

Recent development in Fayette 
vi l le ,  NC, has brought new attention 
to the city's downtown rai l  l i nes .  The 
Up and Coming Weekly notes that 
construction of the city's new minor 
league bal l  park and renovation of 
the Price Char les Hotel have spurred 
concerns. 

Antic ipat ing increased pedes 
tr ian and veh icu lar  traffic, as wel l  
as new businesses and residents, 
downtown leaders saw a need 
to reduce noise from train 
whist les .  

The city's Cool Spring Downtown 
District is explor ing implement ing 

12 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • February 2019 



Vol. 66, No. 3 

March 2 0 1 9  

Inside this issue 

Pricey but effective, way 
finding signs are "voice of 
the city" 3 

Utility before beauty: Above 
all, make maps useful . . . .  3  

SK run goes viral, turns 
into winning event 4 

Despite low vacancy rate, 
city embarks on plan to 
bolster retail sector 5 

Renovation of Wild West 
landmark spurs downtown 
redevelopment 6 

By focusing on five key 
themes, downtowns 
attract mil lennials 7 

Welcoming newcomers, 
Updating trash cans, 
Bringing Wi-Fi downtown, 
Allocating available 
funds, and more 11  

@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Urban wayfinding: Manual 

Mi l lennia l  housing 
preferences: Report 

Upstairs residential conversion: 
Program description 

and appl icat ion 

Economic developers in 
Dubuque, IA (est. pop. 58,276), con 
duct in-depth interviews with more 
than 300 employers every year. 

Their goal is to learn what 
employers are concerned about, and 
what challenges they face. The full 
court press endeavors to keep jobs 
from leaving Dubuque - and the 
hands-on strategy is part of the reason 
some have labeled this riverfront city 
"the Masterpiece on the Mississippi." 

Rick Dickinson is head of the 
Greater Dubuque Development 
Corp., the organization that runs 
the steady stream of fact-finding 

Like many small towns, Oneonta, 
AL (est. pop. 6,638), long struggled 
to bring life and tax revenues to its 
declining downtown. 

Unlike most, Oneonta had a 
downtown property and a plan. The 
city owned a vacant car dealership, 
and City Manager Ed Lowe believed 
that recruiting a college to offer 
classes on the site would generate 
much-needed foot traffic. 

missions with local employers. To 
conduct the interviews, the devel 
opment group has a team of three 
employees, one full-time and two 
part-time. Each interview lasts 45 to 
90 m inutes , and results are compiled 
electronically . 

The interviews aim to go beyond 
the casual chatter at networking func 
tions and really drill down into an 
employer's business . 

"People wi ll say, 'I know about 
Joe's business - I played golf with 
Joe, or I had coffee with Joe,"' 
Dickinson says. 

(Continued on page 2) 

So Lowe approached several 
colleges with an offer of free space 
if they'd offer courses in downtown 
Oneonta. One, Wallace State Com 
munity College, accepted the offer. 

That was good news, but Lowe's 
work was just beginning. Oneonta 
wasn't part of Wallace State's official 
service area, so Lowe needed to 
convince state bureaucrats to grant 

( Continued on page 9) 

ATTRACTION 

Downtown offers free space to 
community college, reaps rewards 

ECONOMIC GROWTH 

For one city, keeping employers happy 
means hundreds of meetings a year 

© 2019 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved. 



For one city, keeping employers happy means 
hundreds Of meetings a year -Co11tinuedfrompagel 

Downtown Development.corn 

To see Dubuque's 
appeal to rni l lenruals, 
visit our website and 
click on "Web Extras." 

75+ 

50+ 

50+ 

He doesn't buy it. Dickinson says a more 

formal sit-down is necessary to really delve 

into an employer's needs. Dickinson insists 

that the interviews are with the company's top 

executive, and not a lower-level manager. 

Dubuque's effort is an example of the 

"grow-your-own" trend in economic develop 

ment. Many downtown leaders are eschewing 

Amazon-style beauty pageants and turning 

away from lucrative subsidies to lure out-of 

town employers. Instead, they're focusing on 

employers who already have built strong local 

connections. 

Even so, Dickinson says, few cities are 

as aggressive as Dubuque when it comes to 

wooing existing employers. 

"It is unusual, and it's unfortunate that it's 

unusual," Dickinson says. 

The approach seems to be working. 

Dubuque's unemployment rate in November 

was just 1 . 8  percent, well below the national 

average of 3.7 percent. 

Those sort of results 

led author and consul 

tant Tom Tuttle to cal l  

Dubuque "The Master 

piece on the Mississippi" 

in his book Growing Jobs. 

"Their No. 1 job is to 

grow the businesses they 

currently have," Tuttle says. 

Not that Dubuque 
turns away out-of-town 

employers. John Deere, 

headquartered about 75 
mi les away in Moline,  

IL, is the largest private 

employer, with 2,600 

workers. Prudential 

Retirement, IBM, and 

McGraw-Hill Higher 

Education have operations 

with hundreds of employ 

ees each, and a Nordstrom 
175+ 16 1  distribution center 

·---- - -·--- employs 376 workers. 

Tuttle calls Dubuque a role model for a 

thoughtful approach to economic development, 

one that balances recruiting new employers 

with catering to employers already doing busi 

ness in the city. 

Dickinson meets every week with city 

officials to report on the results of the inter 

views. Sometimes the meetings reveal CEOs' 

frustrations about issues such as parking or 

traffic lights. When possible, Dickinson passes 

on those concerns to city officials - and when 

the feedback leads to an easy solution, business 

leaders are pleasantly surprised. 

"It literally changes employers' attitudes 

about government," Dickinson says. 

Retaining ski l led workers 

Bui ld ing relationships with employers is 

one thing, but getting talented workers to stay 

in a sma l l  city in Ayover country is another 

matter. Greater Dubuque Development sur 

veyed regional college students about their 

aspirations after graduation and found 55 

percent of those surveyed were unsure if they 

would remain in the area, even though 77 per 

cent believed job opportunities were plentiful . 

Those findings spurred the Greater 

Dubuque Development Corp. to market the 

region to young workers. Its "You Can Make It 

In Dubuque" campaign stresses such amenities 

as music festivals, hiking trails, microbrew 

eries, and restaurants serving farm-to-table 

fare. Affordable housing also is a point of 

focus - the median home value in Dubuque is 

$152 ,600 ,  according to Zil l ow, well below the 

national median of $222,800. 

That sort of approach is crucial to keeping 

young professionals from leaving for Chicago, 

Minneapolis ,  or other large cities, Tuttle says . 

Greater Dubuque Development notes that, 

unlike older generations, young workers priori 

tize their quality of life outside the traditional 

values of career and family. 

Contact: Rick Dickinson, Greater Dubuque Devel- 

opment Corp., 563-557-9049. llI!:I 

2 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



( 
t 

PATHWAYS ANO PUBLIC SPACE 

Pricey but effective, wayfinding signs 
are "voice of the city" 

Springfield, MA (est. pop. 154,758),  

has seen major new developments in recent 

months, including the opening of a casino and 

the rehab of the city's Union Station. 

To help guide visitors to the city center, 

Springfield invested $400,000 in a series of 

wayfinding signs installed in late 2018 .  Each of 

the 49 signs is about six feet high and is set in 

concrete. 

"You don't necessarily have to have 
$500,000 in the city budget," Budev says. 

In addition to the cost, creating an effec 
tive wayfinding system is time-consuming. 

Unlike the rudimentary signs that guide motor 

ists, pedestrian maps encourage users to stop 
and study them. Wayfinding signs need to 
strike a balance between visual appeal and 

"We're going through quite 
a bit of a renaissance," says 

Kevin Kennedy, the city's chief 

development officer. "With all 

the new visitors, we needed 

to come up with a way to help 
people navigate our downtown." 

The focus on pedestrian 
wayfinding signs marks a rever 

sal from decades of common 

practice in downtowns. Most 

signs were aimed at motorists 

speeding past in cars, and the 

streetscape left pedestrians to 

fend for themselves. 

"Wayfinding was kind of 

overlooked," says Sapna Budev, 

executive director of the Sign 
Research Foundation, a non 

profit in Alexandria, VA. 

Now that wayfinding is in 

demand in cities of all sizes, 
one of the first things down 

town leaders notice is the price 

tag. The Sign Research Foun 
dation says price tags range 

from six figures for modest 

projects to mil l ions for large 

installations, a reality that 

Budev says can lead to "sticker 
shock." 

Federal and state funds are 

available for wayfinding proj 
ects, and the AARP also has 

awarded grants. 

Utility before beauty: Above all, make maps useful 

As he travels the country, Wayne Hunt encounters far too many maps that 
are beautiful to behold but difficult to decipher. The orientation is upside down, 
or obvious landmarks are reduced to a confusi�gjumble of numbers or color 
coded dots. 

Hunt, head of wayfinding consultant Hunt Design, says the best maps are 
easy to read. They refrain from forcing pedestrians into "unnecessary mental 
gymnastics." 

"Many graphic designers treat maps as works of art, not as communicat ion 
tools - abstracting reality into obl ivion," Hunt writes on his blog. 

He urges map designers to make wayfinding maps easy to use by fol lowing 
these rules of thumb for clear cartography: 

• Forget the compass; make "heads-up" maps. Up on the map should be 
the same direction as the viewer's vision when reading the map. Don't bother 
with north-up orientation. If the map is oriented for viewers facing south, make 
south up. Hunt points to Google Maps as an obvious analog - you wouldn't 
expect an Uber driver heading south to pick you up to be able find you on 
screen that stubbornly maintains its north-up orientation. 

• Use pictorial references. A map is a miniature 
interpretation of the world. If the map's user can look 
around and quickly spot a landmark building, a busy 
street, or a publ ic fountain, visual versions of those 
reference points should be on the map, too. 

• Avoid legends. Map designers love to use 
numbers or colors as legends. Map users hate them. 
Whenever possible, label destinations directly on 
the map with words. The large size of pedestrian 
wayfinding maps acts as an ally in this endeavor - 
there's room to label landmarks. 

Contee: Wayne Hunt, Hunt Design, 626-793·7847. 

March 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 3 



DowntownDevelopment.com 

To see the Sign Research 
Foundation's guide to 
urban wayfinding, visit 
our website and cl ick on 
"Web Extras." 

usabil i ty. They typically orient the user and 

offer a variety of des ti nations. 

As a result of that more intricate level of 

detail, Budev says building a topnotch project 

can take 1 8  months. 

"You don't just spec out sign age," Budev 

says. "It's a very involved process. There's a 

pretty deep science behind wayfinding." 

And it comes with its own best practices, 

not to mention consultants. Springfield hired 

London firm Applied Wayfinding to design its 

pedestrian maps. Hunt Design of Pasadena, CA, 

is another prominent firm. "Cities are doing 

everything they can to differentiate themselves," 

says Hunt Design's Jennifer Bressler. "The 

signs become the voice of the city." 

The early months of the process involve 

gathering input from stakeholders about what 

information should be included on the signs, 

and what the maps hould convey about the city. 

Budev points to the example of Calgary, which 

pointedly left any reference to the annual Cal 

gary Stampede rodeo event off its wayfinding 

signs. Its maps aimed to highlight life in the city 

for the rest of the year. 

Cities everywhere face one obvious chal 

lenge: Including enough permanent landmarks 

and features on the maps to make them rel 

evant while also responding to requests from 

restaurants and bars to appear on the signs. 

"You can't name every restaurant," 

Kennedy says. Because a wayfinding sign 

might stand for a decade or longer, it shouldn't 

name private businesses that might or might 

not still exist when the sign is replaced. 

"The best practice is for it to be as generic 

as possible," Budev says. "You can't call out a 

restaurant - even a super-famous restaurant 

that's a destination in its own right." 

When it's time to fabricate the physical 

sign, it's a wise idea to pay extra for graffiti 

resistant coatings and weatherproof features, 

Budev says. 

A new generation of wayfinding signs 

incorporates digital technology. For instance, 

a sign might direct a pedestrian's phone to an 

augmented reality presentation from a nearby 

museum. 

Integrating technology into wayfinding signs 

calls up an obvious paradox: Even as physi- 

cal maps have all but disappeared from drivers' 

glove compartments, the old-school markers are 

popping up all over the hippest downtowns. 

"Walking with Google Maps tends to be 

confusing," Budev says. "That's where wayfind 

ing really supplements." 

Hunt Design's Bressler says cities should 

consider the latest technological bells and whis 

tles for their wayfinding projects - but they 

should also beware that technology requires 

extra time and attention. 

"It's really important for cities to plan for 

upkeep and updates," Bressler says. "Keeping it 

current and up to date is really a constant job." 

Contacts: Kevin Kennedy, City of Springfield, MA, 

413-787-6020; Sapna Budev, Sign Research Founda 

tion, 703-778-8095; Jennifer Bressler; Hunt Design, 

626-793-7847. m 

ATTRACTION 

SK run inspired by classic video game goes 
vira l ,  turns into winn ing event 

The first generation of video gamers 

recalls Oregon City, OR (est. pop. 36 ,286) , as 

the final destination in the vintage video game 

Oregon Trail - although many a frustrated 

gamer died of virtual dysentery long before 

reaching safety in the Pacific Northwest. 

Downtown leaders in Oregon City used 

the old-school video game as inspiration for an 

event that showcases Oregon City's fast-rede 

veloping downtown. The Oregon Trail Game 

4 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



"That event has definitely 

proven to be viral and 

engaging. 

A unique, retro event creates buzz and 
draws crowds. 

their promotional and marketing 
opportunities," says Sheri Stuart, coordinator 

for Oregon Main Street. 

Contact: Liz. Hannum, Downtown Oregon Citv 

Association, 503-802-1639. (iTI] 

has seen an investment of 
$42 million in the down 
town district's buildings, 

streetscapes, and infra 

structure. Oregon City also 
offers grants and other 

support to woo employers. 
As a result, dozens 

of new businesses have 
opened, including a 

microbrewery and a 
motion-picture company, 

adding hundreds of jobs 
with good salaries. 

While those are the more lasting, mean 
ingful results of Oregon City's turnaround, 
downtown boosters say a clever 
event like the Oregon Trail Game SK 

can bring much-needed attention to 
a downtown. 

"They're super-creative with 

SK launched in July 2015  and quickly became 
a staple in the city's calendar of events. 

"People my age remember the Oregon 

Trail game from the '80s, and as you run this 
SK, you actually play the Oregon Trail game," 

says Jonathan Stone, executive director of 
the Downtown Oregon City Association until 

early 2019. "That event has definitely proven 

to be viral and engaging." 

While the precise course of the 3 . 1 -mi le  

run changes each year, a start on Main Street 
and views of the Willamette River have 

figured prominently in past courses. Finisher 
trophies aren't medals but old-school floppy 

disks emblazoned with the name of the race 
and the game's pixelated images. 

The race ties in with the popular Oregon 

City Brew Fest. Quirky events like the SK 

helped Oregon City to a podium finish in the 
2018 Great American Main Street Awards - 
the Portland suburb was one of three winners 
nationwide. 

Main Street America noted that Oregon 

City fell on hard times, losing a paper mi l l  and 

later suffering the departure of county adminis 
trative offices. However, a decade-long revival 

ECONOMIC GROWTH 

Despite low vacancy rate, city embarks on p lan 
to bolster retail  sector 

Cambridge, MA, boasts enviable occu 
pancy in its retail and restaurant districts. 
Vacancy rates are less than 5 percent, says Lisa 

Hemmerle, the city's director of economic 
development. 

Even so, a changing retail climate spurred 
Cambridge to take a hard look at what it's 

doing to attract and retain retailers and res 
taurants. In certain neighborhoods, such as 
Harvard Square, vacancy rates are high. 

Aiming to build on its success, Cambridge 
embarked on a retail strategic plan. The city 

hired a consultant to examine its practices 
related to retail. 

One of the consultant's recommendations 
called for Cambridge to continue and expand 

its existing system of grants. 
In one example, Cambridge's Small Busi 

ness Challenge grant program offers grants 

o f $  l  ,000 to $5,000 to businesses, business 

associations, and groups of neighborhood busi 
nesses. Projects can be physical improvements 

such as planters and banners. Or they can be 
educational initiatives that teach technology 

March 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 5 



City makes it easy to embrace publ ic art 

The Vacant Storefront Creative Design Contest in 

Cambridge, MA, has developed a digital library of original 

artwork, which can be reproduced and used for temporary 

window displays in vacant ground floor storefronts. 

Five pieces of art were selected, three by a jury and two 

via publ ic voting for people's choice winners. 

A one-time honorarium of $1 ,000 is provided to each of 

the five winners. In return, the artists grant the city and local 

property owners a non-exclusive l icense to reproduce the 

images in vacant storefronts for two years with an option to 

renew. The artists also grant the city permission to repro 

duce the work in promotions (web and print materials) and 

in documentation for the Storefront Creative Design Contest. 

skil ls or other topics to business owners. 
The city also offers a Storefront Improve 

ment Program that provides $2,000 to $35,000 

for eligible upgrades. The most gener- 

ous grants match 90 percent of the cost of 
improvements to comply with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act. 

In another nod to owners of smal l  busi 

nesses, the city moved approvals for its food 

truck pilot program to an administrative pro 

cess rather than a public process that required 

applicants to attend public meetings. The 

change aimed in part to create fewer pitfalls 

for rookie business owners, Hemmerle says. 

The city also hired an employee to act as 
the city's small-business liaison. She attends 

meetings of business districts and makes a 
point of networking with merchants. 

While Cambridge's retail space is mostly 
full, there are about 50 empty storefronts 

throughout the city, Hemmerle says. To 

spruce up empty spaces, Cambridge launched 
a program to allow vacant storefronts to be 

decorated with works by local artists. The 

city solicited works and uploaded them to its 
website; building owners can print the works 
and use them to fill empty windows or to 

wrap the exteriors of buildings. 
Other aspects of the city's retail strategic 

plan include allowing pop-up shops to fi l l  

empty space and easing the approval process 
for new businesses. Cambridge's strategic 

plan won an Award of Excellence from the 

International Downtown Association. 

Contact: Lisa Hemnierle, City of Cambridge. MA, 

617-349-4616. m 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

Renovation of Wi ld West landmark spurs 
downtown redevelopment 

"It was the catalyst for showing 

that this was a downtown that 

was going to grow, rather than 

just fade away." 

its second-story brothel were 
bustl ing attractions. 

The stone building went 
up in 1886, and the structure 
was an iconic bit of Wild West 

decades, unt i l  Roanoke in 2004 embarked 
on an ambitious plan to bring back its 
downtown. 

The city of Roanoke, located about 14 
miles west of Dallas/Fort Worth Interna 
tional Airport, spent $800,000 to renovate 

the stone building, which is now a museum 
and visitor's center. Downtown Roanoke 
was listed on the National Register of His 

toric Places in 2007, and Texas designated 
the former Silver Spur Saloon as a historic 
landmark. 

In the original heyday of Roanoke, TX 
(est. pop. 8, 1 35 ) ,  the Silver Spur Saloon and 

architecture. In a nod to city 
rules, the stairway to the second-story business 
was built on the exterior of the building. 

In more recent times, the Silver Spur 
was abandoned. The building sat empty for 

6 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



The refurbished building houses the 

museum and visitor's center on the first floor. 

The second floor is closed to the public. It's 

used for storage and for the office of director 

Stacey Lotz. 

When the Roanoke Visitor Center and 

Museum opened in 2008, downtown was still 

deserted, Lotz recalls. Since then, however, 

downtown Roanoke has turned into a bus 

tling restaurant district. Eateries include pizza 

places, taco joints, a Thai restaurant, a barbe 

cue place, and a biscuit restaurant that serves 

breakfast for dinner. 

The Texas House of Representatives pro 

vided a marketing boost when it proclaimed 

Roanoke "The Unique Dining Capital of 

Texas." True gourmets might note that the 

dining scene in little Roanoke is no match for 

the huge, multiethnic metropolises elsewhere 

in the Lone Star State, but Roanoke boosters 

aren't complaining. 

"Anything a taste bud might want, it's 

here," Lotz says. 

She sees the historic preservation of the 

Silver Spur Saloon as a spark for downtown's 

renaissance. 

"It was the catalyst for showing that this 

was a downtown that was going 

to grow, rather than just fade 

away," Lotz says. 

Bringing back a historic 

building helped instill pride in 

a city that was established as 

a stopover along the Texas & 

Pacific Railway. 

"This has become the place 

where people come in and tell 

us what Roanoke means to 

them," Lotz says. 

Roanoke has spurred 

downtown growth in other 

ways. There's a free concert 

series, Evenings on Oak Street, 

from March through Septem 

ber. The downtown also hosts 

Fourth of July fireworks and 

the annual Celebrate Roanoke 

event. 

Meanwhile, the city hopes that a new 

30,000-square-foot convention center and 

a 300-room hotel wil l continue the positive 

Contact: Stacer Lotz, Roanoke Visitor Center and 

Museum, 8/7-491-6090. liEI 

momentum downtown. 

Visitor center and museum are 
strategically located in the heart of 
historic downtown. 

ECONOMIC GROWTH 

By focusing on five key themes, 
downtowns attract mi l lenn ia l s  

New research is providing insights into 

the type of downtown housing that mil lennials 

value. 

According to researchers from Ari 

zona State University (ASU), Phoenix and 

Houston are emerging as hubs of downtown 

housing development - and as unlikely 

draws for millennials .  

"Developers have molded their percep 

tions of Millennials' lifestyle preferences into 

the brick and mortar of downtown Phoenix 

and Houston through innovative building 

design and site selection," write Deirdre 

Pfeiffer, Genevieve Pearthree, and Meagan 

Ehlenz in a working paper published by 

Rice University's Kinder Institute for Urban 

Research. 

The researchers say developers in the two 

downtowns have lured young people by focus 

ing on five broad themes: 

Authenticity. Developers in downtown 

Phoenix and Houston targeted millennials with 

unique, one-of-a-kind properties that projected 

a stark contrast to cookie-cutter suburbs. 

March 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 7 



DowntownDevelopment.com 

To see the full study 
on mil lennia ls' housing 
preferences, go to our 
website and click on 
"Web Extras" 

Millennials consider housing a crucial 

part of their identities. Developers embraced 

this trend by working with historic buildings, 

doing adaptive reuse, incorporating modern 

design features or art installations, and by 

building on unique sites. 

Vintage properties held a special appeal, 

as did themes such as live-work artist lofts. 

Inside/Out. Developers in downtown 

Phoenix and Houston wooed millennials by 

designing their buildings to support an "inside/ 

out" lifestyle. 

Millennials engage in activities outside 

of their homes that other generations would 

engage in inside of their homes, such as 

eating, relaxing, and exercising. Part of this 

push comes from peer pressure: Unlike baby 

boomers and Generation X, millennials feel 

compelled to constantly churn out content for 

social media. 

The inside/out theme places a premium 

on gathering areas such as rooftop decks, 

yoga studios, and community rooms - which 

can take on the same vibe as a popular cafe. 

This trend allows for micro-units to become 

a reality. Compared to previous generations, 

mil lennials are less likely to host dinner par 

ties at home and more likely to socialize in 

common spaces. 

Flexibility. Renting instead of owning Jets 

young adults enjoy greater mobility, an essen 

tial part of their quest to gain new experiences 

and meet new people. 

The "Jock-and-leave" mindset means 

renters can travel for a couple months without 

worry. And they can move to a new city for a 

new job without selling a house. 

Millennials also embrace a "do-it-your 

self' approach to their homes. They want to be 

able to adapt their l iving space to meet their 

ever-changing needs. 

Developers in downtown Phoenix and 

Houston responded by designing open floor 

plans with spaces that residents can use in 

diverse ways. 

Constant connectivity. Millennials are 

more tech savvy - their elders might say 

tech-addicted - than older demographic 

groups. 

Millennials demand Wi-Fi, technology 

enabled amenities, and high-speed cable. 

Developers in Phoenix and Houston integrated 

high-tech features into buildings targeted to 

millennials. One developer of condos and 

rentals in downtown Phoenix included "com 

mercial-speed" fiber-optic connections in a 

recent project. A downtown rental developer 

in Phoenix noted that millennials would enter 

one of his projects and look to see how many 

bars they had on their phones before com 

mencing the tour. 

Social consciousness. Socially conscious 

housing is energy efficient, made from reus 

able materials, or defined by other design 

elements that limit resource consumption 

and waste. 

Housing in downtown Phoenix and 

Houston typically is more energy efficient 

than housing in the suburbs because smaller 

units in multifamily buildings mean less 

space to heat and cool . Air conditioning is 

an especially large expense in the swelter 

ing climes of Phoenix and Houston, and 

mi l lennia ls see small homes as a noel to envi 

ronmental sustainabil ity. 

Some downtown developers in Phoe 

nix and Houston are intentionally including 

environmentally sustainable features in their 

projects. 

I n c e n t i v e s  a n d  light rail  play a role 

Both cities have offered incentives to lure 

downtown development. New properties in 

Phoenix's 90-block downtown core could pay 

lower property taxes because of Arizona's 

Government Property Lease Excise Tax. 

ln Houston, developers received a tax 

break of up to $15,000 for each multifamily 

home bui l t  downtown from 2012 to 2 0 1 6 .  

Houston's East Downtown Tax Increment 

Reinvestment Zone also provides incentives 

for new development by offering subsidies 

and helping to finance infrastructure and other 

improvements. 

Both cities also have added light rail that 

has attracted millennials. 

Contact: Kinder Institute for Urban Research, 

113-348-4132. m 

8 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



Downtown offers free space to community 
college, reaps rewards -Continuedfrompagel 

a waiver that would allow Wallace State to 
operate outside its normal territory. 

Winning that waiver proved to be 
straightforward. Wallace State Community 

College offers technical training that's not 
offered by the other community college in 

the area. 
Next came the challenge of paying for 

upgrades to the campus. A former car deal 

ership wasn't especially well-suited to a 

downtown campus, so Lowe's next project 

was to convince the state to help Oneonta pay 
for his vision. 

Alabama came through with $2.3 mil 
l ion, and Oneonta contributed a similar 

amount. Wallace State Community Col 
lege's 18,000-square-foot Oneonta campus 

began offering courses in 20 17 ,  and in 20 18  
the  project won an excellence in economic 

development award from the International 
Economic Development Council (IEDC). 

As of early 20 19 ,  about 300 students 

attended classes on the campus. Welding, 
commercial drivers l icense training, and nurs 

ing are among the popular courses of study. 
Downtown leaders long have prized com 

munity colleges as sources of foot traffic, and 
the effect can be especially important for rural 
downtowns. The Wallace State campus in 

Oneonta draws from a four-county area, and 

Lowe says the new crowds downtown have 

inspired restaurants and coffee shops to open 
to serve students and teachers. 

"We see them in town eating lunch," 
Lowe says. "It's really made a huge dif 

ference in the foot traffic available to our 
downtown merchants." 

College locates incubator downtown 

In a U .S .  economy that increasingly 

sees small towns struggle while big cities 
thrive, Oneonta's community college strategy 

provides a useful case study. Much of rural 

America might be bereft of high-paying, high 
tech jobs, but many economically depressed 

areas have a community college nearby. 

In Wardens vi I le, WV ( est. pop. 261)-, 

for instance, the New Biz Launchpad is a 

project of Eastern West Virginia Commu 
nity and Technical College and the Institute 

for Rural Entrepreneurship and Economic 

Development. The project aims to spur foot 
traffic in downtown while also providing an 

incubator for startups and practical experi 

ence for students. 
"By placing the Launchpad in the heart 

of the downtown, rather than on campus, 
the college made a strategic decision both to 
commit a college presence to the downtown 

and to meet entrepreneurs where they are," 

the IEDC reports in a study about the role 
of community colleges in local economic 

development. 
In addition to the incubator, the 

New Biz Launchpad includes retail 

space. In 20 16 ,  the college started 

Skybrook LLC,  a student-run store 
that provides hands-on learning. 

The Launchpad also offers men- 

toring and co-working areas for eight to 
1 2  startups, along with  meeting space and 

conference rooms for training 
and lectures. 

Reflecting the rural nature of the 

regional economy, the Launchpad works 
with farmers, growers, schools, and com 

panies to explore economic diversification 

opportunities for farmers beyond raising 

livestock or growing crops. The project won 
important support in 20 1 6 ,  when it received a 
$50,000 grant from the U .S .  Small Business 
Administrat ion. 

Back in Oneonta ,  the small city in 
northeastern Alabama plans to build on the 

init ia l  success of its downtown campus. 

Oneonta is expanding the school by build 
ing a 15,000-square-foot second phase, and 

Lowe hopes to eventually have 2,000 stu 
dents on campus. 

While the city's research indicated 

the campus would be successful, Lowe 

acknowledges there was risk involved. Many 

downtown merchants." 

traffic available to our 

"It's really made a huge 

difference in the foot 

March 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 9 



-----------------------------··-··· --- 

residents would have preferred an invest 

ment in parks or elementary and secondary 

schools. 

"The mayor and council went out on 

a political l imb, and now we need to show 

results," Lowe says. 

Sales tax revenues from downtown res 

taurants are one obvious result, he says. He 

also hopes the campus will help keep skilled 

workers and good employers in Oneonta. 

"We have a real brain drain," Lowe says. 

"We do a good job of educating young people 

through high school, but then they leave." 

The community college campus is 

just part of Oneonta's effort to revitalize 

downtown, Lowe says. The city also has loos 

ened zoning rules to allow for second-floor 

residences. 

Contact: Ed Lowe, City of Oneonta, AL, 

205-274-2141. IIlll 

ATTRACTION 

Food tours of diverse neighborhood 
br ing visitors 

With its wealth of small restaurants run 

by immigrants from Latin America and Asia, 

the North Fifth Street commercial district in 

Philadelphia's Olney neighbor- 

adventurous eaters stop at five or six restau 

rants along North Fifth Street. Each restaurant 

serves an appetizer-sized specialty, and the 

owner talks about the cultural importance of 

the dish.  

"We make it very digestible," Michel says. 

About 20 to 30 people attend each event, 

which draws a combination of neighborhood 

residents and people from elsewhere in Phila 

delphia. The tickets are sold on Eventbrite. 

The easy introduction to exotic fare 

encourages patrons to return to restaurants that 

might have seemed intimidating. 

"When people come back, they know what 

to order and where to go," Michel says. 

The events aim to achieve a number of 

goals. The tours bring traffic and exposure to 

small businesses, and they energize residents 

and spur community pride in a neighborhood 

long considered marginal. 

Philadelphia is hardly the only city 

to highlight its exotic restaurants. Santa Fe, 

NM, Ithaca, NY, Madison, WI, Austin, TX, 

and Juneau, AK, are among the mid-sized 

cities that have embraced a growing taste 

for varied cuisine. 

Contact: Stephanie Michel, North Fifth Street 

Revitalization Project, 267-331-9091. IIlll 

hood offers a smorgasbord of 

dining choices. 

In hopes of turning its exotic 

fare into foot traffic, the North 

Fifth Street Revitalization Project 

(N5SRP) decided to promote its diversity. 

The organization launched a series of formal 

tours of its 30 or so 

restaurants. 

"We heard 

from residents that 

they wanted to try 

this Korean place, 

but they didn't  know 

what to order," 

says Stephanie 

Michel, director 

of N5SRP. 

Sensing an 

opportunity, N5SRP 

began organizing 

regular food tours. 

A ticket costs 

$25 to $35, and 

"When people come back, 

they know what to order 

and where to go." 

10 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



Updating trash cans 

With the approach of the Big 
Ten Women's Basketbal l  Tourna 
ment and other spr ing events, 
Downtown Indy Inc .  (D I / )  and 
the Ind ianapo l i s  Department of 
Pub l i c  Works transformed 160  

downtown trash receptacles using 
colorful vinyl wraps. The trash 
wraps feature the message, "Pitch 
In  & Win for a green and c lean 
Downtown." 

''Trash wraps create a vibrancy 
and excitement for our  visitors, 
residents and downtown business 
community," says Anne Masch 
meyer, beautif ication director 
for D I / .  

NAME------------·-·- 

FIRM/ORGANIZATION 

ISSN 0012-5822 

Downtown 
I d e a  Exchange 

A publication of the 
Downtown Development Center 

36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E 

Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 I 
Phone: (973) 265-2300 • Fax: (973) 402-6056 

Email: info@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Website: DowntownDevelopment.com 

Editor 

Jeff Ostrowski, ext. 110 
jostrowskitirlrowntown Devel opnien t. com 

Technical Editor 

Laurence A. Alexander 

Customer Service 
Mary Pagliaroli, ext. 101 

mpagl ia roli@Downtown Development. com 

Reprints and Permissions 
Michael De Wirt, ext. 107 

mjdewittte Downtownlrevelopment. com 

Publisher 

Margaret De Will, ext. 106 
msdewi tt@Down town Development. com 

Do11·111ow11 !dea Exchange" is published monthly by 

the Downtown Development Center. The Center 

provides news, information and data for successful 

downtown revitalization through its newsletters. books. 

reports. and website. 

') Alexander Communications Group 
• © 2019 Alexander Communications 

Group, /11c All rights reserved. No part of this pub 

lication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval 
system, or transmitted in any form or by any met111s, 

electronic. mechanical. photocopying or otherwise, 

without the prior written permission of Alexander 
Communications Group. 

* US $246, Canada $251, Elsewhere $267. 

j E M A I L - -  ----- 

Subscription 'order Form: . 

, PHONE- --- . 

! Please start/renew my one-year 
subscr ipt ion to Downtown Idea 
Exchange for $246.* 

�--------·- ------ 

! 

·14.J MAIL: 36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E 
Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 

I � FAX: (973) 402-6056 

'  a  PHONE: (973) 265-2300 

' @ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Bringing Wi-Fi downtown 

One of the new amenit ies 
coming to downtown Cuyahoga 
Fal ls , OH,  is free pub l i c  Wi-Fi 
service. The city is in the process 
of opening an aging downtown 
pedestr ian ma l l  to vehic le traffic 
and a ims to provide a l l  of the ame 
nit ies needed to attract bus inesses 
and residents. 

"When we redid everything, we 
wanted to make sure that we d idn 't  
miss out on any of the ameni t ies , "  
Mayor Don Walters tel ls Oh io .  
com. "It's obviously dog-friendly, 
bike-friendly, family-friendly . . .  But 
we a lso knew that Wi-Fi's impor 
tant for people, espec ia l ly out on 
patios. There's a lot of patios, with 
more coming." 

Downtown Indy notes that 
addit iona l  efforts to keep down 
town clean inc lude establ ishing 
downtown-wide c leaning stan 
dards, improving event c leanup, a 
proactive graffiti removal program, 
brick repairs, and more. 

"r . 

•' ,. :/\•. I d e a  

Welcoming newcomers 

As the City of Dubuque ,  IA, 
seeks to grow exist ing businesses 
and absorb an expand ing work 
force, the Inc lus ive Dubuque 

Network is working to welcome 
new community members. 

Results of a community equity 
profi le revealed that "for someone 
who is new to the community, 
Dubuque is a closed network that 
is hard to break into if you weren't 
born here - and that can make it 
d ifficult for newcomers to access 

opportunit ies." 
In July, the I am a Dubuquer  

campaign was born. The campaign 
website combines s imp le ,  b lack 
and-white portraits of community 
members with brief text about 

their journeys to Dubuque .  
See the website at: 

imadubuquer . com 

---------------- 

March 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 1 1  



I d e a  

Twelve nodes, or access points, 
were insta l led on l ight poles bring 
ing service downtown. 

Preserving smal l  
businesses 

The Ma ine city of Camden 
is consider ing zoning changes 
to keep fast-food cha ins out of 
its downtown. The Press Herald 

reports that the effort a ims to, 
"ma inta in  the un ique  ident ity of 
the core of downtown Camden,  
which has trad i t iona l ly  been home 
to sma l l ,  loca l ly or Ma ine owned 
and operated business, espec ia l ly 
food service establ ishments ."  

For more on efforts to l im i t  
fast-food cha ins and other formula 
bus inesses downtown see the 
November 2 0 1 8  issue of Downtown 
Idea Exchange. 

Allocating available funds 

An exercise in Auburn, NY, encouraged community members to a l lo 
cate funds among many proposed projects. 

There were over 20 items on the Downtown Revitalization Initiative's 
prel iminary project list with a total estimated cost of almost $22 mi l l ion .  
The bulk of the projects involve new development, rehabil itation, or site 
improvements. 

At the fifth publ ic workshop on the initiative, community members 
were asked to identify preferred projects by spending DRI bucks. 

Each participant 
received $ 1 0  mi l l ion 
DRI bucks which they 
then placed in jars 
behind a description 
of each of the projects. 
Participants were also 
encouraged to use 
post-it notes to suggest 
revisions to project 
funding amounts.  

Branding a Dig Zone 

W ith a streetscape project in 
ful l swing in downtown West Pa lm 
Beach ,  FL, the city's Downtown 
Development Authority dubbed 
the area ,  "The Dig Zone" and  
offered incent ives to visit .  

Bus inesses in the zone were 
open for d in ing ,  shopping and 
enterta inment dur ing construct ion 
with the added ent icement of a 
downtown swag bag for frequent 
vis itors .  The s imp le  punch-card 
program ca l led on part ic ipants to 
vis it 1 0  businesses and spend at 
least $ 1 0  at each to receive a swag 
bag va lued at up to $ 1 5 0 .  

Encouraging upper level 
residential 

To spur res ident ia l  develop 
ment in downtown Bradenton, 
FL, the city recently approved the 
Upstairs Res ident ia l  Conversion 
Grant Program. 

E l ig ib le  conversions may 
secelve grant awards of up to 
$6 ,250 per un it  for up to four units .  
No property owner may receive 
more than $25,000 from the pro 
gram over the life of the project. To 
qual ify for grant funds, appl icants 
must match the grant amount  by 

an equa l  or greater investment of 
private funds. 

Last year, the city announced a 
s im i l a r  program to expand d in ing 
options downtown. The Restau 
rant and Food Services Incentive 
Program provides grants of up to 
$25,000 for permanent inter ior 
improvements to new restaurants 
or food service businesses that 
move into ex ist ing bu i ld ings .  

_ To see the full program 
descriptions and application 
forms, visit DowntownDevel 
opmentcom and click on 
"Web Extras." llIEI 

12 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • March 2019 



Vol. 66, No. 4 

April 2019  

I n s i d e  this issue 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

"Boot camp" for startup entrepreneurs 
pays big dividend in  smal l  downtown 

As downtowns embrace 
streetcars, an obvious ques 
tion: Are they worth it? . . .  2  

Five keys to a successful 
streetcar system 2 

Downtown cultivates wine 
industry to lure tourists . .  6  

Quaint town pushes back 
against SG antennas 6 

Alley beautification 
makes downtown more 
inviting 8 

Downtown cadets program 
boosts police presence . . .  9  

No spots for food trucks? 
No problem for this 
creative concept 10 

Walkable city center, 
Heated streets, Round 
abouts, Modern library, 
and more 11 

@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Development Effects of 
Modern-Era Streetcars: 

Report 

Promoting Huntsvil le's Beer 
Trail: Video 

Holland's Snowmelt System: 
Video and brochure 

When it comes to building a 

thriving economy, little Monticello, 

IL (est. pop. 5 ,555) ,  has a couple of 

strikes against it. The city is in a state 

that has struggled for decades with 

tepid job growth, a lagging economy, 

and a dwindling population. What's 

more, as a rural burg located 150 

miles from Chicago, Indianapolis, 

and St. Louis, Monticello lacks 

a local tech economy, financial 

employers or manufacturing base. 

A third strike came in 2014, with 

the death of a longtime landlord in 

Downtown leaders in Huntsville, 

AL (est. pop. 194,585), have built 

buzz through a simple and inexpen 

sive promotion. 

It's called the Downtown 

Huntsville Craft Beer Trail, and the 

concept is straightforward. Beer 

lovers start with a card listing the 

seven microbreweries downtown, 

an eclectic bunch of businesses with 

names such as Mad Malts Brewing, 

Salty Nut Brewery, and Yellowham 

mer Brewing. 

Monticello's historic downtown. 

Many tenants had handshake deals 

or month-to-month leases with the 

old-school property owner, and 

a change in ownership led to an 

exodus - and a sudden spate of 

empty buildings. 

A church and a bank also moved 

their locations from downtown to 

other parts of the city. In all ,  nearly 

20 small businesses vacated their 

spaces, and downtown leaders went 

into crisis mode. 
( Continued on page 4) 

If a card holder purchases a brew 

at each location, there's a prize - a 

stainless steel bottle opener painted 

bright yellow and emblazoned with 

red letters reading "Trail Boss." 

"It's really cool branded swag," 

says Chad Emerson, head of Down 

town Huntsville Inc. "It's the kind of 

opener you'd see a bartender carry in 

his back pocket." 

The promotion launched in 

2017 ,  and during the first two years, 

(Continued on page 7) 

ATTRACTION 

Beer trai l ,  coffee trai l  drive traffic to 
downtown watering holes 

©  2019 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved. 



ACCESS AND MOBILITY 

As downtowns embrace streetcars, an 
obvious question:  Are they worth it? 

Streetcars suddenly are appearing from 

coast to coast. Atlanta, Cincinnati, Kansas 

City, Oklahoma City, and Tucson, AZ, all have 

installed streetcars in recent years, seeing the 

retro systems as a way boost downtown econo 

mies and make neighborhoods more appealing 

to millennials and boomers. 

The vehicles are clean and new, and they 

possess a hipster credibility that dingy, down 

scale city buses lack. 

Some cities have rejected streetcar lines. 

In Fort Lauderdale, FL, for instance, city 

commissioners in 2018  voted 3-2 to drop the 

Wave Streetcar project after bids came in over 

budget. 

Five keys to a successful streetcar system 

The Wave was proposed as a 2.8-mile 

long streetcar system with rails in the 

street and overhead wires. The city had 

the right to back out of the project if bids 

exceeded $142.5 million. The lowest bid 

was $144.7 million. 

That hefty price tag would have equated 

to an infrastructure cost of more than $50 

million a mile, an eye-popping sum that has 

led some to question the wisdom of such a 

huge investment in an old-school bit of transit. 
The question is made especially relevant by 

the specter of self-driving cars, an innovation 

that could dramatically reshape transportation 

networks in the coming decades. 

As the early wave of modern 

streetcars reaches maturity, 

insights are emerging into suc 

cessful design. A review of over a 

dozen systems, by Politico Maga 

zine, identifies keys to success. 

1 .  Bui ld streetcars where 

people already are - and 

where they want to go. Thriving 

streetcars embrace the idea 

that riders want to hop on and 

off. So streetcar l ines need to 

locate along walkable areas with 

restaurants, shops, and enter 

tainment, rather than taking 

paths through deserted parts of 

downtown. Portland embraced 

this concept. But Salt Lake City's 

streetcar is in a neighborhood 

with less pedestrian activity and 

fewer streetcar-friendly busi 

nesses, and it has struggled to 

lure riders. 

2. Clear the obstacles. 

Streetcar systems that follow set 

tracks are susceptible to poorly 

parked cars and al l  manner of 

obstacles. While some obstruc 

tions are inevitable, the clearer the 

path, the better the system works. 

A design that includes timed traffic 

lights and fewer opportunities for 

bottlenecks will translate to higher 

speeds. Portland's vaunted street 

car travels at an average of 1 O 

miles per hour, much faster than 

the Washington, DC, streetcar's 

pace of just 7 miles per hour. Buses 

have a built-in advantage: They can 

change lanes to avoid a roadblock. 

3. Shorten the wait. In 

Tampa and Salt Lake City, pas 

sengers can expect to wait at a 

streetcar stop no longer than 

20 minutes. That might be the 

longest passengers are wil l ing to 

wait - especially in an era when 

everyone has Uber and Lyft on 

their phones. 

4. Don't hide the additional 

costs. Capital costs of streetcars 

range from $1 O mil l ion to $80 mil 

l ion per mile, a 2014 Congressional 

Research Service report says. But 

bui lding it is just part of the budget. 

Hidden costs such as moving utility 

l ines can increase the price tag. 

And maintaining and expanding a 

system also cost money. 

5. Be realistic about the 

return on investment. Many 

cities point to economic growth 

as the rationale for streetcars. 

But it remains open whether the 

investment in a streetcar causes 

economic growth, or if the street 

car simply arrives at the same 

time as growth that already was in 

the pipel ine. 

2 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 



( 

( 

"You 're investing, potentially, in a 

system that's going to be obsolete in 20 

years. Is that the best place to be putting mil 

lions of dollars a mile?" asks David Feehan 

of Civitas Consultants. "Streetcars are not 

only expensive, but the question is what is 

the shelf life?" 

Others pose similar queries. In a study 

published by San Jose State University's 

Mineta Transportation Institute, Jeffrey 
Brown of Florida State University and Joel 

Mendez of the University of Kansas noted 

the shortcomings of streetcars. 

"The streetcar's return is confound- 

ing for some observers, as streetcars do not 
tend to perform favorably, as transportation 

services, when compared to other transporta 

tion modes, whether rail or bus," Brown and 
Mendez write. 

The strikes against streetcars are obvi 

ous: Because streetcars move at a sluggish 

pace, they attract less ridership than rail. 

Streetcars operate less frequently, and 

because they share roads with cars and 

trucks, streetcars are susceptible to rush-hour 

gridlock - or even to nuisances such as 

parked delivery vans. 

For those reasons, even proponents of 

streetcars tend to describe them as an ame 

nity rather than a staple of downtown transit. 

In Oklahoma City the $ 135  million streetcar 
system was paid for by a temporary, voter 

approved l-cent increase in the city's 

sales tax. 

Jane Jenkins, president of the Downtown 

Oklahoma City Partnership, a nonprofit that 
helps market downtown businesses, tells 

The Wall Street Journal that criticism of 

the streetcar as "a little train around a Christ 
mas tree" is unfair. 

"It's not a be-all, end-all," she says. "It's 

a piece of the puzzle." 

Oklahoma City boosters point to a 
new wave of downtown development driven 

in part by the streetcar line. In Tucson, city 

officials say new construction sparked 

by the streetcar includes the first hotel to 

be built downtown in four decades, an 
AC Marriott. 

Economic development or transit? 

Fans of streetcars see them as an eco 
nomic development tool - a way to spur 

fresh demand for apartments, restaurants, 

and shops - rather than purely as people 
movers. 

"I would argue that exclusive busways 
have proven to be a much more efficient way 

of transporting people," Feehan says. 

In their study, Brown and Mendez 

looked at the performance of streetcar 

systems in Portland, OR, and 

Seattle. Portland's streetcar is 

seen as a shining example. It 
attracts more than 4 million 
riders a year, compared to just 

1 million in Seattle. 

The Portland streetcar opened in 200 1 ,  

and Portland was the first U .S .  city to invest 

in the development of a modern streetcar 
system. Encouraged by its success, Portland 

has expanded its streetcar system many 

times over the years. 

This system has been credited with spur 

ring $4.5 bi l l ion in new development along 

the streetcar corridor. Cities such as C incin 

nati sought to replicate Portland's success. 

Cincinnati sent a delegation to study Port 

land's streetcars nearly 40 times. 

Seattle's streetcars have received no 

such notice. Brown and Mendez write that 

in Seattle, "the streetcar system consists 

of two disconnected lines that do not seem 

to be attracting very many regular users 

because of their inherent limitations with 

respect to speed, reliability, and geographic 
reach." 

Their conclusion : If a streetcar system is 
designed in a way that attracts high volumes 
of ridership, the streetcar is more likely to 

spur development. But a streetcar alone 
won't spark a renaissance. Other factors, 

such as a supply of land, a robust property 
market, and zoning that supports develop 

ment also must be present, Brown and 

Mendez argue. 

Contacts: David Feehan, Civitas Consultants, 

202-288-0528; Jeffrey Brown, Florida State 

University, 850-645-4841. llII] 

Downtown Development.com 

To see a report on the 
development impact of 
streetcars in Portland 
and Seattle, visit our 
website and cl ick on 
"Web Extras" 

"Streetcars are not only 

expensive, but the question 

is what is the shelf life?" 

April 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 3 



"Boot camp" for startup entrepreneurs pays 
big dividend in  Smal l  downtown -Continuedfrompagel 

"We had a lot of empty spaces down 

town," recalls Callie Jo McFarland, director 

of community development for the city of 

Monticello. "We were like, 'Oh, crap - what 

do we do?'" 

McFarland cribbed an idea from another 

small downtown. She learned that Marion, 

VA, had launched an entrepreneurial boot 

camp to coach would-be business owners 

about setting up shop in its downtown. 

Monticello started its own boot camp in 

2015 .  The program is a five-week course, 

with once-a-week instruction taking place for 

a three-hour block on Tuesday nights. 

Instructors are volunteers, and each week 

focuses on a crucial part of operating a busi 

ness. There's an accounting course one week, 

a finance class the next. Courses also focus on 

legal issues and marketing. Those four topics 

are the building blocks of a business plan, and 

by the end of the course, astute pupils should 

have a viable proposal, Mcfarland says. 

The accountants, bankers, and lawyers 

who teach the classes are urged to make 

themselves available to students for follow 

up questions. McFarland acknowledges that 

there's only so much free advice profession- 

Local success stories help promote the Monticel lo boot camp. 

als can afford to give - but instructors view 

the classes as a breeding ground for potential 

clients. 

Classes are free to anyone who wants to 

attend, and courses draw 20 to 35 potential 

entrepreneurs. In the fifth and final week, 

students present their business plans in 

10-minute pitches to a three-person panel of 

judges. In Shark Tank style, the judges pick a 

winner who receives $5,000 to spend on rent 

or utilities. Winners have included Monarch 

Brewing Co., a brewpub and farm-to-table 

restaurant, and Hartfield Book Co. 

To receive the grant, startups must locate 

in Monticello and open within six months of 

the business plan competition. 

Winners also must be open 40 hours a 

week, and, to avoid burnout, the entrepreneur 

must have plans to hire at least part-time help. 

The city pays out the grants only after 

the winners open, and only as reimbursement 

for rent or utilities. The money comes from 

donations from the community, McFarland 

says - although she also has lined up fund 

ing from the city council should local donors' 

generosity run thin. 

Bui lding a track record 

Monticello might be a friendly little town, 

but the boot camps can be all business. After 

the completion of one boot camp, the judges 

didn't award a winner because they didn't 

think any of the competitors were worthy. In 

another instance, the winning entrepreneur 

decided to decline the grant - with no hard 

feelings from the city. 

"Sometimes you're just not ready," 

McFarland says. 

She figures that, rather than failing in a 

few months or a year, it's better for a business 

owner to endure a reality check well before 

opening. 

McFarland says she structured the amount 

of the prize to be substantial enough that it 

would entice business owners to compete, 

4 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 



( 

but modest enough that it wouldn't skew the 
incentives. 

"If you give too much of a grant, people 
are going to use it as a crutch," McFarland 
says. "If $5,000 is going to make or break 
your business, you're probably not ready. It's 
meant to be a reward for having thought about 
your business plan." 

Since the inaugural class in 2015 ,  more 
than 150 entrepreneurs have completed Mon 
ticello's business boot camps. In one example, 
the owner of a software company sold his firm 
and opened Monarch Brewing in a 100-year 
old church. The historic building has no 
parking lot, underscoring the idiosyncrasies 
of commercial space in a downtown district 
where many structures date to the late 1800s. 

The city has run the boot camps for 
almost no cost, and the grants represent 
only a modest investment. In exchange for 
that small outlay, McFarland says, the boot 
camp has breathed new life into downtown. 
Business owners have invested more than 

$3 million since 20 16 .  In 2017  alone, 1 8  new 
ventures opened downtown. 

'The bootcamp gave a lot of eyes on our 
downtown," McFarland says. "We promote the 
heck out of the new businesses coming down 
town. It just really got people excited. Now 
people say, 'I want to be in Monticello - it 
has a vibe." 

"Creating smarter businesses" 

In another unexpected benefit, the boot 

camps have created camaraderie and sparked 
a support network among downtown business 
owners. Entrepreneurs bond during the boot 
camp, and downtown business owners seem 
more will ing to help their peers than in the 
past, McFarland says. Even the companies that 

don't win the grant benefit from education and 
connections. 

The classes also aim to boost the survival 
rate of the city's startups. Restaurants and 

other small businesses are vexed by high 
failure rates, and tenant turnover can be a 
drag on downtowns. The boot camp teaches 
rookie business owners the basics, while also 
coaching starry-eyed entrepreneurs about the 

risks of launching a poorly conceived startup. 
"You're creating smarter businesses," 

McFarland says. "They're learning where their 
network is, what their market is." 

Small cities like Monticello aren't in the 
running for splashy economic development 
prizes such as Amazon's second headquarters. 
That reality underscores the importance of 
what McFarland calls "economic gardening" 
and what others label the "grow your own" 
approach to nurturing jobs. The theory is that 
by creating the right environment and encourag 
ing local entrepreneurs, small cities can tap into 
unrealized economic potential. 

"We get really distracted by the shiny 
stuff," McFarland says. "Economic develop 
ment is not what it used be, where you went out 

and recruited a 300-employee company, and 
everyone was happy. You have to create 

the quality of life before anybody will 'We've become known 
come. That's what we're doing." 

Aside from the obvious headwind 
of being located in the rural Midwest, 
Monticello has a few factors in its 
favor. It's located along Interstate 72 just 20 
miles from the University of I l l inois .  And a 
historic site with a sculpture garden and hiking 
trails serves as a tourist destination . 

Monticello is relatively affluent for a rural 
town, with a median household income of 
nearly $75,000, according to the U .S .  Census 
Bureau's American Community Survey. That 
gives Monticello's startups a bit of disposable 
income to tap into. 

The boot camp courses proved simple to set 
up, and McFarland acknowledges she's sur 
prised that the program continues to thrive long 
after downtown Monticello's vacancy crisis has 
passed. Marion, VA, saw similar results after 
launching its boot camps - downtown vacancy 
rates fell, and investment soared. 

McFarland says downtown leaders any 
where can implement the idea. "This program 
is easy to duplicate," McFarland says. The 
payoff, she argues, can be large. "We've 
become known," McFarland says, "as an 
entrepreneur-friendly community." 

Contact: Callie Jo McFarland, City of Monticello, 

217-762-2ssJ. m 

as an entrepreneur 

friendly community." 

April 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 5 



ATTRACTION 

Downtown cultivates wine industry to lure tourists 

walkable experience, wineries from the Walla 

Walla Valley have opened tasting rooms down 

town - addressing the obvious issue posed by 

driving to farflung wineries. 

"You can spend all day and never have to 

drive a car," Bowton says. 

For visitors who like to travel to the 

region's vineyards, a number of limo services, 

shuttle operators, and designated drivers are 

available for hire. 

"It's just brought a lot of jobs and opportu 

nity to the area," Bowton says. 

Walla Walla's remote location poses some 

thing of a challenge. The city is a four-hour 

drive from Seattle, Portland, OR, and Boise, ID. 

Now that Walla Walla has made its mark 

as a wine destination, Bowton says, her job is 

to continue to support the industry. Downtown 

Walla Walla's Wine and Dine brochure is avail 

able at downtown hotels, and the local wine 

industry courts wine biogs and lifestyle maga 

zines to continue to boost the city's profile 

among wine tourists. 

Contact: Bonnie Bowton, Downtown Walla Walla 

Foundation, 509-529-8755. m 

Walla Walla, WA (est. pop. 32,854), has 

built a thriving tourism industry around wine. 

The small city is the heart of a wine 

producing region that includes 140 wineries. 

Walla Walla's downtown is home to 30 tasting 

rooms run by the region's wineries. 

The downtown also hosts a steady stream 

of events such as Shop, Sip & Stroll, Summer 

Sounds on the Plaza, and Celebrate Walla 

Walla Valley Wine. Some are aimed 

at out-of-town visitors, while others 

are designed to appeal to locals. 

"Wine does bring a lot of tour 

ism to downtown Walla Walla," 

says Bonnie Bowton, a former 

banker who's executive director of the Down 

town Walla Walla Foundation. "Sometimes we 

hear, 'The downtown isn't for locals. It's for 

tourists.' It's for both." 

Walla Walla's wine boom has been driv 

ing the downtown economy, Bowton says. A 

Marriott hotel opened two years ago, and an 

I I-story hotel is on the drawing board. 

Meanwhile , restaurants have sprung up to 

cater to tourists. For wine lovers who prefer a 

"Wine does bring a Jot 

of tourism to downtown 

Walla Walla." 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

Quaint  town pushes back against SG antennas 

Telecommunications giants are scouting 

locations for antennas to support new 5G high 
speed wireless networks. One tiny burg has 

fought back, blocking Verizon Communications 

Inc. from placing dozens of antennas along 

streets noted for their Norman Rockwell charm. 
Residents of Doylestown, PA, disliked 

the unsightly five-foot antennas that Verizon 

proposed. So borough officials spent $150 ,000 ,  

hosted l O public hearings, and battled the pro 

posal in state and federal courtrooms for more 

than a year. 

"We didn't feel they had the right to come 

and do what they want," Jack O 'Brien, counci l 
president of this borough of roughly 8,000, 

told the Philadelphia Inquirer. 

When Doylestown settled the case in 
20 18 ,  the town won the right to reduce the 

number of poles from 44 to 34. Doylestown 
also won the right to hide and move those it 
would be forced to accept. In addition, the 

borough won a 5 percent share of the ser 

vices telecorn providers sell through some of 

those cells, and $750 a year for others. 

6 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 



( 

Alas, Doylestown 's unlikely victory might 
prove rare. In Pennsylvania, telecoms and 
state lawmakers sought to limit municipalities' 
zoning oversight when telecom companies seek 
permits for small cells on utility poles and traf 
fic I ights. 

Telecoms and their supporters argue that 
SG networks are crucial to economic develop 
ment. And wireless carriers seeking to navigate 
hundreds or thousands of zoning rules will find 
themselves overwhelmed by minutiae. 

Meanwhile, the battle over the new cell 
equipment is playing out nationally. The 
Federal Communications Commission in 
September moved to remove local control over 
placement of SG antennas, a decision the U.S. 
Conference of Mayors termed a "wrongful 
intrusion." 

"While the U.S .  Conference of Mayors 
supports the nation's efforts to win the race 
to SG, today's FCC action misapplies federal 

law to federalize local public property as part 
of its efforts to bestow upon a class of private 
companies special rights to access local rights 
of-ways and public property," the group said in 
a statement. 

In Doylestown, the wireless infrastructure 
company Crown Castle in 2014  first proposed 
an instaJlation of small cells .  Crown Castle 
installs and manages the antennas for Verizon 
and other wireless carriers. 

Crown Castle submitted the first dozen 
or so applications in October 2016 .  Karyn 
Hyland, the borough's zoning officer, said 
the initial application for 44 small cells over 
whelmed her small department with "boxes 
and boxes" of documents, according to the 
Philadelphia Inquirer. 

Facing opposition from the borough, Crown 
Castle filed lawsuits in Bucks County and Phila 
delphia, challenging Doylestown's ordinances 
and rejections of its proposals. IIIlll 

Beer trai l ,  coffee trai l  drive traffic to 
downtown Watering holes -Continuedfrompage 1 

downtown boosters handed out 6,000 trail 
cards. And microbreweries awarded 1,000 
bottle openers. 

Downtown Huntsville and the Huntsville/ 
Madison County Visitor Center split the cost 
of printing the cards. The microbreweries pay 
the tab for the openers, which cost about $ 1  
apiece. 

When Downtown Huntsville started its 
craft beer trail, Emerson researched what 
other cities were doing. He found downtowns 
promoting their businesses with wine trails, 
barbecue trails, even jazz music trails, but no 
craft beer trails. 

So Huntsville decided to put its own 
spin on the event. At first, Emerson says, 
Downtown Huntsville thought too hard about 
the promotion. It scheduled new product 
launches and panel discussions as part of the 
beer trail. 

"We probably overprogrammed the 
trail early on," Emerson says. "The micro 
breweries themselves are unique enough that 

Memorable gifts need not be expensive. 

April 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 7 



DowntownDevelopment.com 

To see a promotional 
video featuring 
Huntsvil le's beer trai l , 
go to our website and 
cl ick on "Web Extras." 

the experience of going to one and getting the 

stamp is unique. You don't really need any 

thing extra." 

Now, he says, the trail stays as simple 

as possible. Visitors can pick up 

their cards at any of the participating 

businesses, they can visit the micro- 

breweries at any time, and they can 

claim their prize at any of the participating 

microbreweries. Someone who hopes to claim 

all the stamps in a day can order a beer in an 

amount as small as four ounces. 

"Keep it simple: Stamp, stamp, stamp, 

swag," Emerson says. 

The beer trail promotion has gained 

regional recognition, drawing visitors from 

as far away as Nashville, TN, and Birming 

ham, AL. The effort helps drive return visits 

by exposing downtown visitors to spots they 

might not normally patronize. 

"All of these breweries are in different 

parts of downtown," Emerson says. "It causes 

people to circulate." 

To avoid encouraging overindulgence, 

Huntsvi l le 's trail lets participants spread their 

visits over days, weeks, or months. And Down 

town Huntsville reminds visitors about Uber, 

Lyft, and bike sharing options. 

In addition to its seven microbreweries, 

Huntsville also is home to bottle shops and 

stores catering to craft brewers. Visitors 

can claim their prize by patronizing those 

stores, too. 

Emerson says the promotion is an inex 

pensive, effective way to draw attention to 

downtown businesses. 

"Just about any city could replicate this," 

Emerson says. "It's so low-cost and simple, but 

it's popular." 

In fact, Emerson is taking that advice and 

applying it to a different niche in downtown 

Huntsville. The city is launching a coffee trail 

that encourages visitors to try local java joints. 

Coffee lovers who complete that trail will 

receive a custom coffee mug. 

"In some ways," Emerson says, "the mug is 

better end-of-trail swag than the opener." 

Contact: Chad Emerson, Downtown Huntsville Inc., 

256-858-1857. m 

'Just about any city 

could replicate this." 

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES 

Alley beautification makes downtown 
more inviting 

In Glenwood Springs, CO (est. pop. 

9,962), alleys that once were dreary now are 

inviting. 

Since 2 0 1 1 ,  the mountain town's tax 

funded Downtown Development Authority 

(DDA) has focused on sprucing up the 

system of alleys downtown. 

"Alleys can be disregarded in down 

towns as underutilized space, but in 

Glenwood Springs alleys are an important 

part of the downtown core contributing to 

the city's downtown pedestrian-friendly 

network," says DDA Executive Director 

Leslie Bethel. 

The DDA and the city have aimed to 

improve downtown alleys for pedestrian and 

business access, and to remove obstacles that 

might tum away pedestrians. Bethel says she 

wants to create "inviting, active places that 

8 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 



foster social interaction with paving, benches, 

signage, lighting, and color." 
Consolidating waste service and collection 

has been a big part of Glenwood Springs' alley 
strategy. The DDA boosted the efficiency of 

trash pickup, reducing the number of trash bins 
and establishing a centralized location in each 

alley for waste collection. 
The city in 2 0 1 8  bought trash compactors 

as part of that effort. 
Other improvements included repaving, 

improving drainage, and burying utility lines. 

Glenwood Springs completed its first alley 

renovation in 20 13 .  The upgrade included 
decorative pavers, outdoor dining, and decora 

tive pots and plantings. 
More recently, Glenwood Springs added 

overhead string lighting to two alleys. 
"The overhead lighting has significantly 

helped to create a more inviting, attractive and 

safer downtown environment," Bethel says. 
"Looking at ways to activate alleys brings 
warmth and builds on a strong sense 

of place." l!Illl 

CLEAN AND SAFE 

Downtown cadets program boosts 
pol ice presence 

Portland, ME (est. pop. 66,882), doesn't 

have a problem with serious crime. Like many 
cities, Portland has seen rates of violent crime 

fall in recent decades. 

But the downtown does struggle with 
public-safety nuisances such as panhandling, 
vagrancy, loitering, public drinking, and drug 

abuse. 
Those issues might make a downtown 

less welcoming, but they aren't the sort of 
law-enforcement challenges that necessar- 

ily require a city to assign full-time police 

officers. So the nonprofit Portland Downtown 
came up with a common-sense solution: It 
launched the Downtown Cadet Program, 

which deploys unarmed patrols to walk Port 
land's streets during the busy season of May 

through early October. 
The cadets don black polo shirts and 

khaki pants and travel through downtown in 

two teams of two. The cadets give directions 

to tourists, and they try to gently cajole people 
they see violating bans on public drinking or 
smoking. 

"We're striving for an improvement in 
the perception of safety," says Amy Geren, 
program director at Portland Downtown. 

"They're largely just trying to be a friendly 

face of law enforcement." 

Portland Downtown pays the cadets about 
$ 1 2  an hour. The cadets' wages come from 

the budget of Portland Downtown, a business 
improvement district funded by an assessment 

on downtown properties. 
The recruits are typically college students 

in criminal justice programs, or young people 

aiming for careers in the military or 

on a police force. 
"It's a really good fit in terms 

of the cadets trying out a police 
job, and also for the police depart 
ment to try out potential officers," 

Geren says. 
The cadets quickly learn that much 

frontline police work has little to do with 
investigating major crimes or collaring bad 
guys. Instead, a constant focus is dealing with 

people who are fighting their own demons. 
"Sometimes the cadets are surprised by 

the amount of social service work they're 
doing," Geren says. "There's just a gap in ser 
vices for mental health and substance abuse." 

The cadets carry no guns or pepper spray. 
They are supplied with Narcan, the nasal 

'We're striving for an 

improvement in the 

perception of safety." 

April 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 9 



spray that can reverse an opioid overdose, and 

the cadets have police radios in case a situation 

escalates. 

"They are armed with their words, so they 

learn to communicate," Geren says. 

From smoking violations to 

traffic control 

The cadets are trained by the police 

department in the concept of "verbal judo," a 

tactic for encouraging a scofflaw to comply 

without physical force. They give warnings for 

violations of city ordinances, but the cadets 

aren't empowered to make arrests. 

The most commonly cited infraction in 

2018  was smoking in parks where smoking is 
banned. Cadets issued 187  warnings for that 

infraction. 

Smoking was followed by public con 

sumption of alcohol, with 95 warnings. Less 

frequent warnings included 35 for loitering, 

10 admonitions to stop smoking marijuana 

in public, and a handful of warnings about 

unsanctioned skateboarding. 

To help answer questions from lost 

visitors, recruits also get some training from 

Portland's tourist bureau. The cadets are par 

ticularly popular with cruise ship passengers, 

who ask questions during their forays to shore, 

Geren says. 
And the cadets are coached on services 

available for homeless people. 

The Portland Police Department collects 
and tracks daily stats from each cadet team. In 

that way, the unarmed patrols help the police 

identify trouble areas. At the start of each shift, 

cadets meet with a police lieutenant to learn 
their assignments for the day. 

In the case of a big event, the cadets might 

help with traffic control. In 2018, cadets handed 
out backpacks during a Fill A Backpack event 
as the start of the school year approached. For 
the most part, they stroll through downtown and 

serve as a comforting reminder that downtown 
Portland is a safe place. 

The 2018 cadets reported they felt some 

animosity during their patrols at first, absorb 
ing racial taunts and being called "Girl Scouts," 

Geren says. But after getting to know people 
living on the streets, they were able to build 
relationships. 

Contact: Amy Geren, Portland Downtown, 

207-772-6828. l1I!ll 

Information on Portland's downtown graffitti 

removal program appeared in the August 2018 issue 

of Downtown Idea Exchange. 

ATTRACTION 

No spots for food trucks? No problem for this 
creative concept 

Charleston, SC (est. pop. 134,875),  boasts 
one of the nation's oldest urban districts. But 

the thriving city is missing one key ingredient 
of many bustling downtowns - food trucks. 

A group of entrepreneurs came up with 
an innovative solution. The Container Bar 

features a bar built from a shipping container, 
along with spots for four food trucks that 
change daily. There are also tables, chairs, 
sun umbrellas, and bathrooms. For food 
truck operators, there's a landscaped lot 
with power. 

"Charleston has a reputation of being a 
culinary mecca, but it is unique in that there are 
no spaces for food trucks to congregate," Brad 

Creger, one of three owners of Container Bar, 
tells the New York Times. 

A couple trucks usually show up for lunch, 

and then different trucks arrive for dinner, the 
Charleston Post & Courier reports. 

The trucks stay open until they run out 
of food. The bar serves drinks until 1 1  p.m. 
Sunday through Thursday and until midnight 
on Friday and Saturday. liEI 

10 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 



I d e a  Exchange 

TITLE 

N1 5  

·------- 

CITY 

EMAIL 

Customer Service 

Mary Pagliaroli, ext. 101 

mpagliaroli@DowntownDevelopmenr.com 

Reprints and Permissions 
Michael Dewitt, ext. 107 

mjdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Publisher 

Margaret Dewitt, ext. 106 

msdewi rt@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Downtown Idea Exchange® is published monthly by 

the Downtown Development Center. The Center 

provides news, information and data for successful 

downtown revitalization through its newsletters, books. 

reports, and website. 

') Alexander Communications Group I 

' © 2019 Alexander Communications 
Group, Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this pub 
lication may be reproduced, stored in o retrieval 
system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, 

electronic, mechanical. photocopying or otherwise, 

without the prior written permission of Alexander 
Communications Group. 

* US 5246. Canada $251, Elsewhere $267. 

ISSN 0012-5822 

Downtown 
Idea Exchange 

A publication of the 
Downtown Development Center 

36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E 

Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 

Phone: (973) 265-2300 • Fax: (973) 402-6056 
Email: info@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Website: DowntownDevelopment.com 

Editor 

Jeff Ostrowski. ext. 110 

jostrowski@DowntownDevelopmenr.com I 

Technical Editor 

Laurence A. Alexander 

ADDRESS 

� MAIL: 36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E 
Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046 

ldJ FAX: (973) 402-6056 

if PHONE (973) 265-2300 

@ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopment.com 

Subscription Order Form: . 
Please start/renew my one-year 
subscription to Downtown Idea 
Exchange for $246.* 

�-------------- FIRM/ORGANIZATION 

-PH-ON-E---------�-�--- 

I 

I NAME 

Kathleen Crocetti and in hands-on 
work creating the mosaics .  

The city is now working with 
Crocetti to beautify the Civic P laza 
Parking Garage. Over a period of 
five years, the entire exterior of 
the structure wi l l  be covered in 
mosaics .  

"We're super excited, because 
we're going to bring vibrancy to 
the city," Crocetti told the Regis 

ter-Pajaronian. "We'll create th is 
monumental  piece that's going to 
he lp with economic development, 
as well as bu i ld  community." 

The project wi l l  cover 12,000 
square feet of the six-story garage. 

"This piece wi l l  a lso have histori 
cal significance, but I th ink it's going 
to be more contemporary," Crocetti 
sa id .  "Who are we now? Who lives 
here?" 

Heated streets draw winter 
shoppers and runners 

In 1988 the City of Ho l l and ,  
Ml, implemented "the largest 
munic ipa l  snowmelt system in 
North America." 

Seasonal closures to create 
a more walkable city center 

Portsmouth, NH,  has been a 
popu lar  summer destination for 
decades. Now two city counc i l   
ors are hoping 
to make the city center 
more pedestrian and 
bicycle friendly dur ing 
the height of the summer 
season. 

City Counci lors Ned 
Raynolds and Nancy Pear 
son have proposed c losing a 
number of downtown streets to 
vehic le traffic on Ju ly weekends. 
As a first step, input wi l l  be sought 
from the pol ice and fire chiefs, 
Department of Pub l ic  Works, and 
the city's p lann ing and economic 
development directors. 

This type of proposal has met 
with opposit ion from the bus i -  
ness community in the past, says 
seacoastonl ine .com. However, the 
counci lors are opt imist ic that more 
people wi l l  come downtown and 
l inger longer in a pedestrian envi 
ronment. The mantra going forward 
is, "cars don't buy things, people 
do," says Reynolds. 

Mosaics wi l l  beautify 
parking garage 

A stroll down Main Street 
in Watsonvi l le , CA, takes pedes 
tr ians a long a trai l  of 1 6  mosaic 
meda l l ions embedded in the city 
sidewalks. The mosaics represent 
the major waves of immigration to 
the city and the labor associated 
with each of the immigrant groups. 
The community part ic ipated in 
design discussions with artist 

' ., 

, 

April 2019 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com 1 1  



I d e a  

a  place where people wil l  come 
and do lots of different things." 

Some of the many features of 
the proposed bu i ld ing are a center 
for arts and history, an event space 
with seating for 300 to 400 people, 
two rooftop gardens, a gift shop, 
cafe, parking, and, of course, plenty 
of space for books. 

The budget of $80 to $85 mi l   
l ion would be funded through 
phi lanthropy, Capital City Develop 
ment Corporation, City of Boise, 
and lease financing. IJJII 

Flexible bollards at each 
approach help direct traffic. 

Downtown gives roundabouts a test drive 

Brightly colored mini-roundabouts and curb extensions have been 
painted directly on the street in downtown Manden, ND. It's part of a 
pop-up demonstration designed to make intersections more pedestrian 
friendly while keeping vehicular traffic moving smoothly. 

At it's website, the city explains the rational for the temporary 
installation: "Demonstration projects are low-cost, offer the public an 
experience in order to provide constructive feedback and help determine 
whether or not to move 
forward with possible per 
manent changes if funding 
became avai lable." 

Publ ic opinion wil l 
be sought throughout 
the demonstration via 
an onl ine survey geared 
toward pedestrians 
and drivers. Business 
owners wil l  be surveyed 
separately. 

Modern l ibrary fi l ls 
many roles 

No longer content with s imply 
lend ing books, modern l ibrar ies are 
evolving into community hubs and 
drawing visitors into city centers. 

In  Boise, IA, city leaders p lan 
to replace the current downtown 
l ibrary with what they are descr ib ing 
as a "publ ic center for knowledge, 
culture, and ideas." 

"We want a faci l ity that connects 
the community," l ibrary director 
Kevin Booe tel ls BoiseDev. "We want 

The system was developed to 
he lp Hol land 's downtown district 
retain shoppers and other visitors 
in a harsh environment which can 
see up to 75 inches of snow a year. 

The city exp la ins how it works: 
"Water is heated and circulated 
through 1 2 0  mi les of plastic 
tubing underneath the streets 
and s idewalks .  The tubes are 3/4" 
in c ircumference; Ho l l and has 
600,000 square feet of tubing 
total ing 4.9 mi les  and 10 . 5  acres 
of heated streets and s idewalks. 
With the water heating up to 95 
degrees Fahrenheit ,  the system 
can melt 1 "  of snow per hour - 
even at 20 degrees Fahrenheit 
with 1 0  m i le  per hour winds ." 

Whi le  c lear and passable 
s idewalks have enabled shoppers 
to reach downtown businesses, 
there has been another positive 
economic benefit. The city has 
become a mecca for runners and 
garnered the city recognition from 
the Road Runners C lub of America 
as one of its 20 17  Runner Fr iendly 
Communit ies .  

Runners World descr ibes the 
scene: "On a typical wintry Sat 
urday morning,  the streets of 
downtown Ho l l and are so packed 
with runners that it often looks l ike 
they're hosting an organized SK. 
Whi le runners and pedestr ians, 
part icu lar ly shoppers who are a 
key part of Ho l land 's  tour ism strat 
egy, share the same s idewalks [it 
never seems to be an issue.]" 

To see a video and a brochure 
��ft on Holland's snowmelt system 
===== t.;:; go to Downtown Development 
=== ':- c com and click on "Web Extras." 

12 Downtown Idea Exchange• www.DowntownDevelopment.com • April 2019 


























	05-21-19 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf (p.1-4)
	02-26-19 DRAFT Minutes.pdf (p.5-7)
	Item I.A. Storefront Grant Applications.pdf (p.8-69)
	Taber Building (421 Railroad Street)
	J.M. Capriola (500 Commercial Street)

	Item I.B. Storefront Grant Remaining Funds.pdf (p.70)
	Item I.C. Centennial Park Train Refurbish.pdf (p.71-74)
	Item I.D. Design of Block Ends.pdf (p.75-81)
	4th-Street
	4th-Street vs 30 percent plan
	5th-Street
	5th-Street vs 30 percent plan
	6th-Street
	6th-Street vs 30 percent plan

	RDA Budget 2018-2019.pdf (p.82-83)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Feb 2019.pdf (p.84-95)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - March 2019.pdf (p.96-107)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - April 2019.pdf (p.108-119)
	Downtown Idea Exchange - May 2019.pdf (p.120-131)

